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Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Well, if the workmen, as you say, combine, as the
bakers did, because the man did not belong to their church; on the other hand,
the employers generally in the different trades combine and they maintain
employment bureaus or offices and they maintain the index-card system of all
their employees, and if a man is discharged or leaves the employment of one
of them, or he quits one of them and goes to another for employment—he has
been an agitator, or a union man, or he has done a thousand and one things
which are charged against him; and that information is held and when he
goes to another employer in search of work they will call up the one for whom
he has been working and ask for his record, and they send his card over to the
other shop, and for no reason the other employer says, “ We have no work
for you to-day.” He might as well say, “ We have no work for you because
you don’t belong to our church.”

Mr. DaveENPORT. Do you observe the recognized distinctions in things?

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Oh, yes.

Mr. DAVENPORT. Suppose my wife wanted to employ a servant and a servant
applied to her for employment, and she learned she had worked for Mrs. Har-
riman. So she called Mrs. Harriman up on the phone and asked her all about
this servant and as to her habits, as to her honesty and as to her skill and one
thing and another; and she told my wife about her—that is.a privileged com-
munication under the law, she could not be sued as long as she acted in good
faith. Now, so far as this bureau you speak of is devoted to legitimate pur-
poses—and every sensible man knows what it is—diffusion of the character of
the man, it is entirely legitimate, and I should suppose commendable.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Where, then, would the line be drawn?

Mr. DavENrorr. Oh, if it is used for the purpose of preventing that man
from getting employment because of his activities as a union or as a nonunion
man, why the books are full of cases where men have brought suit and re-
covered damages, not only against his employers, but against officers of unions
for getting men discharged. It is where the purpose is to injure; and I can
see that the fate of the case you quote would depend in a large degree upon
the circumstances; but any combination of anybody—two or more persons—
with intent to oppress or injure anybody—to deprive a man of his opportunities
of earning a living—is an actionable conspiracy and in a court of equity its
execution can be restrained where the damage will be irremediable.

CHairman Warsa. Would it be convenient, Mr. Davenport, for you to remain
over until to-morrow?

Mr. DAvVENPORT. Yes, sir.

}J Chairman WarLsa. Then, if there is no objection, I will ask you to leave the

stand at this time; there is a witness that we have promised to let go to
Chicago, and Mr. Weinstock has some questions to ask of you, and also Mr.
Lennon,

We might get through with the other witness this afternoon, if you will

remain in attendance. ;

Mr. DavexporT. I will; but I can stay until to-morrow.

Chairman WarsH. Would it be more convenient for you to leave now with
the assurance that you will not be needed until to-morrow morning?

Mr. DavenrortT. I am getting used to the atmosphere, and I believe I will
stay. I have had the pleasure of examining Mr. Lennon and Mr. O'Connell
in court, and I want to see how it seems for them to have the power of
questioning.

Chairman WarsH. Mr, Johannsen.

[ -

TESTIMONY OF MR. ANTON JOHANNSEN.

Chairman WarLsH. State you name, please.

Mr. JoEANNSEN. A. Johannsen.

Chairman Warsd. What does the “A” stand for, Mr. Johannsen?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Anton.

Chairman Warsg. What is your age?

Mr. JonansENN. Forty-three.

Chairman WarsH. Where do you reside?

AMr. Jonannsen. California.

Chairman WarsH. What place in California?

Mr, JonmannseEN. Corte Madera. 7 d
halrman Warsi, How long have you resided in California, Mr, Johannsen?
Mr, JommansseN, About eight years.
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Clhulrwan WarsH. Prior to that time where did you live?

Mr. JomaxnNseEN. In Chicago.

Chairman Wsarsu. Have you, during your life, been in any official position
with labor organizations?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. I was business agent for the Amalgamated Wood Workers
a couple of years in Chicago, and was State organizer for the Building Trades
Council of California, and at present I am general organizer for the United
Brotherhood of Carpenters.

Chairman WawrsH. Please sketch, as concisely as you can but still com-
pletely, your history in industry, when you started to work and what at, give
us a brief story of your life in industry down to the present time.

Mr. JOHANNSEN. It is a long story. I started to work in the mill business
in Clinton, Iowa, for Curtiss Bros., a good nonunion shop.

Chairman WaLsH. At what age?

Mr. JomanNsEN. No—I worked the first thing when I came here in a
brickyard.

Chnlrnnan Warsn, Were you born In (his country?

Mr. Jouassssn, No: In Germany, In that portion where they have no
o KKultur,” but o lot of blaek brewd. I don’t want anyone to be prejudiced
against me because I was born in Germany; that is a pretty bad statement
in Washington at this time.

I worked in the brickyard for a year and a half, and worked for Curtiss
Bros. after that.

Chairman Warnsa. How long—how old were you when you came from
Germany ?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. Between 9 and 10.

Chairman WarsH. Did you go to school in Germany?

Mr. JomaNNsEN. I went to school about two and one-haif years in Germany.
I did not get any chance to go to school here.

« T worked for Curtiss Bros. until I was 19, and I was always threatened by
father that he would give me a beating if I lost my job, and I lost my job, and
go I skipped out and got my experience on the road three or four years, and
then I came back, and my mother was kind and considerate, and she saw to it
that I got married, and I married well; I got a good wife; I got the best of the
bargain.

After working for Curtiss Bros. about four or five years I moved to Chicago,
and there I became interested in the Amalgamated Wood Workers’ International
Union and became a mémber of that organization and was more or less active,
and was its business agent for a period of about two years, and then I moved to
California. There I became a member of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters,
and after being in California for about a year beciune the general organizer for
the State Building Trades Council of California. My place of employment as
organizer was in Oakland, seven or eight months, after which I was sent to Los
Angeles, as a general campaign was anticipated in Los Angeles to organize that
State. With that object in view, several general organizers were sent to Los
Angeles to make an attempt to organize Los Angeles, and I was sent there as a
.representative of the State Building Trades Council. That was in 1910,

I have made a few notes, and I suppose there is no objection to referring to
them?

Chairman WaLsH. No. You know the general topic we are on, and if you
have had any connection with any of the events out of which charges of vio-
lence have grown, I wish you would tell about them.

Mr. JomanxseN. I would like to speak about the ironworkers.

Chairman WarsH, What connection did you have with the ironworkers?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Only as I was State organizer of the Building Trades
Council. And that trouble was in 1910, when the Times Building in Los Angeles
was blown up, and I was quite intimately identified with the defendants of that
frial in Los Angeles.

Chairman WaLsH. The McNamaras?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir; and also the ironworkers in Indianapolis; and I
was on the road soliciting funds for the defense of the ironworkers while they
were on trial in Indianapolis.

Chairman Warsa. Were you acquainted with the McNamaras?

Mr. JoBANNSEN. I got acquainted with J. J. McNamara before he went to the
coast, and I got acquainted with J. B. in the Los Angeles County jail and have
interview him several times since at the San Quentin prison. I hope thal (he
commission will take into consideration that I am under indictment at (he pres-
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ent time and have been. I am charged with the transportation of dynamite
from State to State. I have not seen a stick of dynamite, although I might be
able to recognize one because I have read and heard s¢ much about it. I am
under indictment, although I have demanded trial every six months, periodi-
cally, but I have failed to get a trial in Los Angeles on Federal indictment, and
I am out on bail of $1,000.

Chairman WaLsH. Were you indicted in connection with the McNamara
incident?

Mr. Jomannsex. I was indicted on the 30th of December immediately pre-
ceding the trial of the McNamaras. The men in Indianapolis were indicted in
the month of January following. O. A. Tveitinor, Mune, and Clancey were
indicted in both Indianapolis and Los Angeles. I was indicted in Los Angeles
only. But that is about enough of that.

I want to read a brief if I can, if you are interested in the fight between the
Erectors’ Association and the ironworkers [reads]:

“ Since the great strike of 1892, known as the Homestead strike, which failed,
every effort has been put forth by the owners and proprietors and directors of
the United States Steel Corporation to discourage and annihilate unionism in
their industry.

“ Directly after the Steel Trust was organized it began the business of issuing
stocks and bonds, and within a short time the common and preferred stock and
the interlying bonds of this eompany amounted to $1,500,000,000. On all of
these bonds and preferred stock have constantly been paid interest since that
time, and most of the common stock has paid dividends at the rate of from
4 to 5 per cent.

“In addition to that, an enormous amount of property has been accumulated
to the earnings of this company.

“This property originally capitalized at $1,500,000,000 was not worth more
than $300,000,000. It was therefore stocked and bonded at the rate of $5
per $1.

¢ The Steel Trust must provide a way to pay interest and dividends upon this
vast amount of water. There was nothing to do but to take it from the
workingman. "

“According to a statement made by Louis Brandeis, of Boston (and Brandeis
is considered, I believe, an authority on economics), a meeting was held in
J. Pierpont Morgan’s office in New York June, 1901, by the board of directors of
the United States Steel Corporation. At this meeting a resolution was passed to
prevent any further extension of unionism in the steel industry.

“As an indication of what has happened since that time, the American
Federation of Labor at their Atlanta convention in 1911 points out in one of
their official documents that every labor union in the steel industry has been
exterminated, with the single except of the Iron Workers’ International Asso-
ciation.

“At the Philadelphia convention of the Iron Workers in 1905, a declaration
of unfairness was declared against the National Erectors’ Association and the
American Bridge Co., two subsidiary organizations in the steel industry.

“ Since that time a bitter and relentless industrial war has raged from coast
to coast between these two contending forces.

“In the course of this war the Steel Trust stood for profits and greed. The
ironworkers fought for a shorter workday, a living wage, against the 12-hour
day 7 days per week which had been in vogue in the steel industry for many
years.

“ On the side of the Steel Trust were allied the following forces: Enormous
wealth, Government, great newspapers, the police powers of the State, and the
greatest of all powers—starvation.

“ On the side of the ironworkers were men, women, and children fired with
social courage to fight as best they could against this antisocial institution,
They were afforded very little or no opportunity of protection from any source
outside of that which they were able to develop within themselves. The very
nature of ‘their work, being as it is exceptionally hazardous, tends to develop
physical courage as well as a social instinet for collective self-help.

“ Tt should be evident to any reasonable human being that the policy of the
Tron Workers' International Union gave better protection to their organization
and members than that which was adopted by other labor unions in the
steel industry, which have long since been annihilated and subjected to a
12-hour day 7 days per week, with an average wage of $409 per year.
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“I got this data from the Stanley committee several years ago that investi-
gated the steel industry: Average wage $409 a year, 12 hours a day, and 7
days a week.

“ Whatever may be said for or against the iron workers, the bold fact
remains that they had little or nothing to choose from. Iither they must sur-
vender to this power and be subject to its economic and social tyranny and
suffer long hours’ toil with short pay, such as is now in vogue in all other
departments of this industry, or do just what was done until the public con-
science could be aroused against the Government's indifference to the social
needs of labor.

“If a man represented the ironworkers in the capacity of an organizer and
approached a contractor who was building steel bridges, or buildings, on the
question of organizing his men, establishing the eight-hour day, and paying
the union rate of wages, it was not an unusual thing to have the contractor
acknowledge the social justice of labor’s demand. But invariably it would
be pointed out that the National Frectors’ Association and the American Bridge
Co. had such control over-the output of steel that any contractor who should
in any way antagonize the Steel Trust's labor policy would be confronted with
the possibility of financial ruin. And so it came that this great comporation,
with its allied corporations, like the Standard Oil, exercised a power and force
that even the Government itself seemed unable to control.

*The United States steel industry is protected by a high tariff, which makes
it possible for them to escape competition abroad. But the labor market has
little or no protection from the Government, and therefore is compelled to com-
pete with the cheap markets of the world.

*“J. J. McNamara informs me that during his administration as secretary
of the iron workers that the erectors’ association filled their organizations of
labor with spies in all the large cities. But in spite of all the opposition the
membership of the iron workers constantly grew until they reached nearly
14,000 members, as compared with a little over 6,000 when he took office. The
8-hour day was established from coast to coast as against the 9 and 10 hour
day which prevailed in many localities prior to his administration. An average
rate of wage of $4.30 now prevails for an 8-hour day, as compared with an
average wage of $2.30 for 9 hours 10 years ago.”

For fear I forget at this time, before I get to Stockton, T might call your
dttenton, especially of my friend Mr. Weinstock, that in the lockout in Stockton
that was brought against us last year and lasted over six months. During the
course of that lockout they put up a building known as the—I forget the name
of the building now, but it was a five-story, Class ! building. They were very
careful before they declared the open shop on that building. They waited
until iron workers were through erecting the steel. It is absolutely impossible
in any city, outside of Los Angeles, to erect a steel building without the as-
sistance of the organization of iron workers. They have a good organization.
Drew knows that. ;

Some three years ago the American Federation of Tabor made an earnest
effort to organize the unorganized in the United States Steel industry. With
this object in view a circular was issued in 13 different languages for distri-
bution amongst the men working 12 hours a day for this corporation.

I was present with the officers of the Chicago Federation of Labor that went
to Gary, Ind., for the purpose of distributing these circulars in the hope of
interesting these workers to form labor unions that might afford some oppor-
tunity to aileviate this colossal social injustice. .

When we arrived at the plant we found a large wall barring out all visitors,
and private police protecting each entrance against interlopers. Over 10,000
men are employed at Gary, a small city named after the head of the United
States Steel Corporation. When the men came out of the gates one could read
on their faces despair, lack of faith, and no hope, completely dominated by fear
that this antisocial beast, the United States Steel Corporation, would dismiss
them from service if they should exercise the ordinary right of reading our
message. Hence they refused to take our handbills and, in nearly every case,
were afraid to look at us, to say nothing about the possibility of social inter-
course as freemen. -

Any institution that is responsible, as this corporation is, for driving the Iast
bit of hope from the human heart and soul of over 700.000 men, women, and
children, is infinitely more criminal and dangerous to n higher civilization and
a better society than all the charges made againgt the MeNamaras nid other
union men, even it they should all he true, which labor denloes,
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The McNamara brothers are in prison, and so are many of the members of
the Iron Workers’ Union and many other unions. But little effort has been
set forth to ascertain the cause of this social disease that is responsible for the
eternal conflict between the house of want and the house of have.

The McNamaras, so far as I have been able fo learn, had great hopes to
make the world listen to labor’s suffering. It is their belief, as well as the
opinion of thousands of others, that this very commission is in a large measure
the response to their activities. If this be true, then they are not suffering in
vain, for the men, women, and children, not only in the ranks of labor, but in
many other walks of life, are hopeful that through this commission the lights
will be turned on, and industrialism will be shown as it is. Labor has nothing
to fear from the full truth. We believe this would help to bring about a greut(f_r
intelligence, and a more humane understanding could be obtained by the public
of the real economic and social condition of our industries.

During the course of this industrial war it is common knowledge that t_hfe
employing class have not only used every effort to control the courts by leg_ltl-
mate or other means, but they have invariably imported professional. strike
breakers and thugs to commit acts of violence, in the hope of crystallizing a
public opinion against labor. |

These large corporations have such a distinct advantage over labor b:v rea-
son of their control of the press which makes the fight so much more difficult
and tends to embitter men and women in the ranks of labor who feel the suf-
fering of our class the keenest. .

It is common knowledge that in every large industrial strike the newspapers
of the country so arrange the information for the public, giving it a color that
is intended to be favorable for the‘employers, regardless of the mere little
thing called the truth. ) ; )

An organization called the Associated Charities of Pittsburgh made an in-
\'estiaatfon of the conditions of labor in the steel industries, and they report
in their findings that the rate of wages paid is far below what is necessary for
an ordinary family to sustain themselves on.

I was at the trial in Indianapolis for some time. Now, if I had not learned
to read and had no social intercourse with anybody, and didn’t know anything,
had never met anybody, I would have sworn that that frial was a meeting of the
board of directors of the United States Steel Corporation. If I didn’t know
Drew and had not seen him, I would have imagined that Judge Anderson was
Walter Drew. A fair trial? Heavens! I would not begin to consider it a fair
trial. The jury retired on Thursday night, and glccording tq their own state-
ment this jury that was considering a blanket indictment against 40 men, there
were originally 54 men indicted, but when the case came up for consxdemtan
it was set for the 1st of October, and when it came up for trial there were gix
or seven of them dismissed, although this indictment had hung over them for
six or seven months. That is unimportant, of course, they are only working-
men ; but when the trial started, gradually the number of defendants dwindlqd
down, were dismissed, until the case finally went to the jury, a.nd when it
finally went to the jury there were 40 defendants to wl}ich_ the ,]ury‘ h:u_l to
give consideration, which would mean their life and their liberty. The jury
retired on Thursday, and acknowledged, according to their own statements, ﬂ.mt
they did not begin to give consideration to the testimony lll’lt'll Friday morning
at 10 o’clock, and admitted that they had reached a conclusun_l before 5.30 on
Friday night, and did not report until Saturday morning. .I will tell you why.
If you will go back a little bit you will find that every time the M. & M., or
Manufacturers’ Association, or Burns Detective Agency, or any other detec_tlve
agency, or enemy of labor, when they thought they had a gqod story against
labor they arranged so that it happened on Saturday. You will find that Hay‘—
wood was kidnapped on Saturday, the McNamaras on Saturday, rthe grand
jury brought in their verdict on Saturday ; everything on Saturday. I.‘he,s( have
a fine publicity agent; they pay for it the same as Rockefeller. That is not
force or violence, that is just money.

They have figured out, and I have had it reliably from newspaper men from
this (-itv. from New York, from Chicago, from San Francisco, in fact I have
never yet met a newspaper man who was inclined to deny it, at least, those
that they could oceasionally, on the q. t. tell the truth and they are not many,
but lh«-_\" tell me that it is figured out that about 10,000,000 more human beings
rend the Sunday papers than any other paper, and so a message that shall have
for iy purpose sending out some more poison against the social hopes’ of In.bor
inusl happen on Snturedny, 8o [t ean be put in on Sunday. They don’t believe
fiv violence, that i n migtake ) they belfeve In law and order.
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During that trial there is positive evidence that the train was ordered by the
Government officials op the 19th day of November, 40 days before the triatl
closed. They ordered a special train to convey 90 people to the Leavenworth
Penitentiary. I will. show you how close they gucssed—an ordinary person, if
you were next to the game you would not be surprised, but to show you that
they guess pretty close, there were 93 or 96, maybe 99. But anyway, the jury
were all farmers., I have nothing against the farmer, but after all a man who
is so far removed from the industrial whirlpool, it is difficult for him to get
the point of view of labor at industrial centers, and when a person does not
get your point of view, don’t blame them for convicting you, if they have the
power. They can not give you any consideration, and don’t understand you;
they don’t know your language. That was the trouble with those poor farmers.

I don’t say that the jury was fixed, but I do say if you had fixed it, Mr.
National Erectors’ Association, you could not have done it better, with the sin-
gle exception they were too anxious, they brought in a blanket verdict, a blanket
indictment covering 38 men, finding them equally guilty on a blanket indict-
ment, and it was so wrong that even Judge Anderson couldn’t stand for ift,
and he dismissed 5 of them. There was one man dismissed after he was ex-
amined by Judge Anderson. It seems that some one got word to Judge Ander-
son to this effect—I can’t think of his name now, but I can get it if
necessary—but there was some man, a member of the executive board of the
International Iron Workers’ Association at the time they declared the National
Erectors’ Association unfair, he voted against the closed shop, and Judge Ander-
son found it out somehow and he asked him about it, and when he found out
he voted against the closed shop he was acquitted, there was no evidence
against him; he was all right. He was for the open shop. There were men
who were indicted that it was found had not been members of the organization
for some time and were not taking active part any more, and they were dis-
missed also, everything was all right; but when the jury came out and con-
victed 38, 33 of them finally went to the penitentiary.

" Everything was so staged; I don’t know whether the Government did it or
not, but somebody did it, and I am inclined to think that it is not unreasonable
to. think that the National Erectors’ Association, who were interested in making
this as spectacular as possible; anyway, those men were chained alongside of
deputies and taken down the principal street for exposé to the county jail. I
am very glad to say that their relatives and their friends had sufficient courage
to stand by them. I can not help but say for the women, at least, not one
woman in that whole fight of the ironworkers, either in Indianapolis or Los
Angeles, showed any yellow streak. They all stood pat, every one of them.

Mrs. Painter, the wife of one of the men convicted from Omaha, Nebr., lined
up all of the women in the hall after the conviction and went to them with
clenched fists and said to them: “Don’t you cry; don’t you give the erectors’
association the satisfaction; put your tears in your muscles; and if our men
go to prison, we will have to make the fight. Some day labor will understand.”

God! If they ever do, there will be something doing, believe me! That is
all. I understand labor; you don’t; and the other fellow can’t understand; you
can tell that by the last witness.

I was in California when the conviction came. I went to Santa Cruz to
tell Tveitmoe's wife and children all about the trial, and tried to give them
some encouragement and some hope.

Chairman WarsH. Was that Tveitmoe from San Francisco one of the de-
fendants?

Mr. JomannsEN. O. A. Tveitmoe, from San Francisco, one of the men con-
victed, and his case was appealed, and he got the Supreme Court, or the higher
court, to throw his case out on account of lack of evidence. A man had a
right to send a Christmas card from California to Indianapolis, so the higher
court said, but they were mistaken according to the erectors’ association, but
we won’t go into that. When Mrs. Tveitmoe was interviewed by the Examiner,
1 thought she gave a very unique interview. She said: “I don’t know nothing
about his union affairs. He is good to his family and true to his friends, and
they had better not make him mad.” She was a Viking Norwegian woman.

I am glad to say that every union of ironworkers had sufficient social
courage and loyalty. to reelect every man that was convicted. When they
went to prison they took care of the families, and those that are in prison now,
including old lady McNamara. When they went to prison the first thing we
did in our State convention in Los Angeles we suspended all rules and -order
of husiness, and took up the first thing, the reclection of genernl seeretnry and
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treasurer, and executive board members, and elected Tveitmoe and Clancey by
acclamation, and it was the first time this proceeding ever took place in our
convention.

Now, about Los Angeles. The organizers went there in the early part of
January, 1910, and I don’t know of anywhere where the Merchants & Manu-
facturers are so well organized and have so much power and so much influence
as in Los Angeles. There was a time in Los Angeles when we could not engage
a lawyer for love or money, except a few socialists; They had not much to
lose, anyway, you know, and you could not get any other lawyer; you had to
get them from San Francisco.

Los Angeles was recognized by the labor movement, at least on the Pacific coast,
and I am satisfied in most of the East, as a city of slaves, where labor had scarcely
any power whatsoever. The full strength of the Merchants & Manufacturers’ As-
sociation was in every instance directed against any individual or against any
individual union at any given time they showed any signs of strength, in order to
keep them squelched. We have always been told that whatsoever ye sow, that
shall ye also reap. I wonder if Otis believes that? We always reap what we
sow. In 1910 a general strike was organized in the metal trades. Although
not an act of viloence occurred, the city council, four weeks after the strike
had been inaugurated, passed an ordinance drafted by Earl Rogers, chief
council for the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Association, making it unlawful
for any union picket to speak to a nonunion man. You would hardly believe
that if you were not there. Well, I happened to be at the ecity council when
this ordinance was passed. Now, this city council is comprised of what we call
“ Goo-goo’s.” The Goo-goos are reformed Republicans and Democrats, what-
ever that may mean. The city council was, of course, elected as an anti-
corporation council. They were against corporations, and against the Southern
Pacific particularly, and against corporate interests that were controlled by
the crooks, and such men as Otis, Fredericks, and that gang. And when the
strike came on and this respectable democratic anticorporation city council
had to choose between taking the dope, as it were, from Karl Rogers, whom
they hated and looked upon as vicious and crooked, for years active in Cali-
fornia rotten politics and connected with the corporation interests, Earl
Rogers dictated that, wrote it, read it to the council, and made an argument.
Do you know what the argument was? Oh, I wish every one of you men could
have heard that. It was rich. Karl Rogers argued before this city council as
follows [reads]:

“About five years ago a great strike took place in a city not over 500 miles
from Los Angeles ™

He didn’t want to name San Francisco. There is an awful feeling between
those two cities, you know. [Continues reading:]

“And in that strike some bricks were thrown and some men were hurt and
some men were nearly killed ; and therefore I advise you to pass this ordinance.”

Well, if you can see any logic in that—maybe a lawyer would, but a shoe-
maker would not. Because there was a strike in San Francisco five years pre-
vious to this—that was the famous street car men’s strike—therefore the city
council of Los Angeles should pass that ordinance prohibiting all kinds of
picketing, and they voted for it unanimously, and the old mayor signed it im-
mediately, and it got into a journal right away and became a law. Well, we
consulted the peacemakers, as we always do, and so we called a meeting of the
representatives of all the unions in Los Angeles, two or three men from each
union, and called in the only two lawyers we could get, Job Harriman and Fred
Spring, because the others knew they would be boycotted by the M. & M.; and
the M. & M. do it on the “q. t.,” but it is very effective. Bul these lawyers
pointed out to us that the city of Los Angeles had a democratic charter, and
that this charter provided that when this council passed an ordinance, why,
such an ordinance would lie on the table 80 days, and if within that 30 days
15 per cent of the voters should send in a petition asking that the ordinance
be submitted to a referendum vote it would be submitied to referendum vote.
Then there was something else in the charter. Oh, my! They always get that
in. “ Except an ordinance to preserve the peace of Los Angeles.”

They can always get you on that. They can get almost all the working people.
Now, when the politicians come around the camp they say they want this, be-

wuse this means peace. And nobody can get up and say, “ I am not for peace.
I want to fight.” You can’t get elected to office if you do that. So they had this
Joker in the charter: “ Except an ordinance to preserve the peace of Los
Aungeles.”  So it was written up, and so it was worded accordingly. And Earl
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Rogers personally, when he became the chief counsel for Darrow subsequently,
he did.not hesitate in telling me personally, he said, “ This was a joke on the
Goo-goos ; I put it over on them.” So they passed the ordinance. We couldn’t
do nothing at all—had to do one of two things, either be cowards and call the
strike off, or else tell the city council to go to hell; and we did the latter. You
will excuse me, Mrs., Harriman, if you please. . i

Commissioner Harriman. Certainly. i :

Chairman WarsH. We will leave that out, please, Mr. Johannsen,

Mr., JoHANNSEN. Very well, Mr. Chairman.

So we advised these men against calling this strike off. 'We have a right to
speak to men. This is a rank invasion of the worst kind. And we called a
meeting of the men who were affected, about 1,200 of them, and put it to them
plain and straight. y

The union men and women of California had pledged themselves to pay 25
cents a week out of their wages for an indefinite period until Los Angeles
should become organized, and they were sending that pledge, about $6,500 a

week, for the Los Angeles strikers from San Francisco to finance the strike .

with, together with what we were getting from the international organization.
We called the men together and described the situation briefly and without any
exaggeration, and told them what it would mean; told them we could not afford
to hire éxpensive lawyers; we could not afford to pay fines; we could not afford
to bail anybody out. But they ought to resist this ordinance, and if they were
willing to we were willing to. We took a secret vote—a secret ballot—after the
explanation, after everybody was informed that if you go on the picket line and
get arrested you will not be bailed out. If you are found guilty, your fine won’t
be paid. You will have to suffer. We wanted to go to jail as a protest against
this rank injustice. And so we put it to a vote, and the vote was unanimous
on the secret ballot that the men would rather go to jail than surrender to
such a rank piece of favoritism in legislation.

' The passage of this ordinance more than anything else instilled a feeling of
hatred and bitterness and resentment in the working people of Los Angeles
against the Government. The result was that every man engaged in it unani-
mously voted on the secret ballot that he preferred to go to jail, and so forth,
and so on.

During this year 1910, in the month of August

Chairman WArLsH (interrupting). What was the “so forth and so on?”

Mr. JoBANNSEN. Well, I have already repeated that to you.

Chairman WaLsH. Oh, you have?

Mr. JomanNseN. During this year the now governor of California, Gov.
Johnson, made a speech in Los Angeles In Simpson’s Auditorium when he
wias o eandldate for governor, denouncing Harrlson Gray Otis in the following
languange:

“In the city from which I have come we have drunk to the very dregs the
cup of infamy. We have had vile officials, we have had rotten newspapers, we
have had men who sold their birthright, we have dipped into every infamy,
every form of wickedness has been ours in the past, every debased passion and
every sin has flourished. But we have nothing so vile, nothing so low, nothing
so debased, nothing so infamous in San Francisco, nor did we ever have, as
Harrison Gray Otis. This man has attacked me on the only side to which I
will not respond, concerning which, rather than respond, I will lose the gov-
ernorship of the State of California. He sits there in senile dementia with
gangrened heart and rotten brain, grimacing at every reform, ‘chattering im-
potently at all things that are decent, frothing, fuming, violently gibbering,

going down to his grave in snarling infamy. This man Otis is the one blot on -

the banner of southern California; he is the bar sinister upon your escutcheon.
My friends, he is the one thing that all California looks at when in looking at

southern California they see anything that is disgraceful, depraved, corrupt, -

crooked, and putrescent—that is Harrison Gray Otis.”

It is reasonable to presume that had Samuel Gompers made this speech at
this time he would have undoubtedly been indicted by the grand jury, charged
with being an accomplice in blowing up the Times.

Tt was common to hear people on the streets in every city on the Pacifie
coast give vent to the sentiment “ Why didn’t they get Otis?” I have heard
it all over the country, “ Why didn’t they Kkill Otis? It would have been all
right.” :

T am informed that a statement of this character was made by William T,
Burns, the great detective, to some of the newspaper men in San Francisco.
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The demands of labor in Los Angeles were very nominal and only that which
they were already receiving in San Francisco and other coast cities, the metal
trades employers in San FKrancisco contending that unless labor could raise
the standard in Los Angeles the employers would be forced to lower the
standard in San Franeisco.

The Merchants & Manufacturers compelled their members to deposit a cash
bond of $5,000 as a guarantee that the employers would not deal with the
unions and would insist upon the so-called * open shop,” which is open only to
a working class that is docile and sufliciently browbeaten to accept whatever
terms the employer may insist upon. All men and women who make an intel-
ligent and militant effort toward a better social life are boycotted and penalized
with all the power that the M. & M. can rally against them,

I submit for the commission’s information a copy of the San TIrancisco Bul-
letin, under date of January 10, 1911, which contains the M., & M.’s attitude
toward employers that are inclined to be fair, which will show the viciousness
of the employers’ association, quite regardless of law, order, civilization, or
anything else.

{Witness submitted a copy of the San Francisco Bulletin of January 10, 1911,
containing an article entitled “ Los Angeles boycotts all workingmen who are
members of union. Merchants & danufacturers enforee black list and use
methods that are ‘un-American’ when employed by organized labor.”)

This concerned the McCann Iron Works, who signed-up with the union, and
we compromised with them. They came down to the strikers and made this
suggestion. The demand was for an eight-hour day and a minimum wage of
$4. the same as in San Francisco in the iron trades, comprising the iron molders,
the machinists, the boiler makers, the blacksmiths, the patternmakers, and their
respective helpers, and finally it involved the structural-iron workers, whe were
not organized at that time, but they caine cff the building like flies, but they
were not organized at that time. And this man who was boycotted by the
M. & M. came down and signed up an agreement with us, providing that the
men might work ‘nine hours a day at a $4 rate until the first of January, 1911,
which we agreed to, and he went on and employed 250 men. But the M. & M.
put him out of business. He had finally to quit and go back to the open shop.
They did not do it with violence, and so we could not do anything with them. .
They do a lot of violence, but they cover it up with money. If you gentlemen
don’t believe that, ask the erectors’ association, and they will develop that.

I recall an instance where some of the strikebreakers were hurt on a build-
ing, and when union men went to the coronor’s inquest in the hope that some of
our people would be chosen as jurors, only to be disappointed. :

You understand under the charter there if anybody is hurt and is taken down
to the coroner’s office to the inquest, why the jury is generally picked from
men who are in close proximity. We knew, of course, that that was the law,
and were all law-abiding citizens. So we did not want to give them an oppor-
tunity to know we were there, and we sent 200 men down there, and while
we were waiting an automobile -came along, and in that automobile was the
jury, of course. OD, it was a fine game! In every case the M. & M. dictated
supreme, and the juries were selected that were considered safe. Now, of

-course, there is going to be another trial in Los Angeles on the 1st of September,

1915; M. A. Schmidt and David Caplan. Otherwise I should present to this
commission the docnment which we have in our possession, but which the com-
mission can obtain, I am satisfied, within the next two or three weeks; but we
have the documentary evidence that the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Associa-
tion personally and absolutely dictated the character and names of the grand
jurors. We have documentary evidence of that, signed by Mr. Zeehandelaar.
Commissioner O'ConNELL. He is secretary
Mr. JoHANNSEN (interrupting). He is secretary of the Merchants & Manu-
facturers’ Association. Oh, they believe in law and order! You bet your life!
In this they O. K'd Bill Jones, for instance; marked him * hates the union.”
Samuel Brown, “ friend of the Manufacturers,” and some other man, * friend—
personal friend—of mine—O. K.” Oh, it is fine! If we ever wrote a letter like
that we would all go to prison, if we represented labor. That is the reason the
executive officers of the A. F. of 1. have to be pretty careful—have to be, be-
cause they can get after them much easier.
My experience in strikes and lockouts has been that labor is by far more law-
ablding and less vicious than the employers.

38810°—8, Doc. 415, 64-1—vol 11——39
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Whatever our sins may be, what little we know we have learned from ob-
serving the tactics of the manufacturers’ associations.

It was no surprise to the average working man when news came out about
Muilhall and his million and a half corruption fund to be used in Congress to
influence ‘men against the proposed remedial labor legistation.

Say, if Gompers had done that! Good night! The papers wouldn't have
stopped yet. : . :

In the city of Stockton, Cal., we have just emerged from a general lockout
brought about by the Merchants, Manufacturers & Employers’ Association, in
which it was conclusively proven, not alone that they employed 20 professional
gunmen and sluggers, but that they actually had a list containing the names of
union officials and active men, with a price attached, ranging from $25 to $75,
if they were slugged. I was worth $75. I was worth more than the rest of
them. I was kind of proud of that.

These union men were to be beaten up and waylaid. Affidavits sustaining
this fact can be obtained in San Francisco.

One man by the name of Emerson was caught with a suit case of dynamite

and arrested.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Is that Stockton or Los Angeles?

Mr. JoHANNSEN, Stockton.

When it was discovered that he was employed by the Merchants & Manu-
facturers Association he.was promtly released, but a week later rearrested. He
has been tried twice in Contra Costa County and once in Stockton and finally
dismissed. In all his trials the Merchants & Manufacturers employed counsel
for his defense openly and defiantly, notwithstanding the fact that he had made
a confession involving active officials in the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Asso-
ciation, which afterwards he modified and changed to suit the convenience of
the M. & M.

Now, this man Emerson told me personally from his own lips the program.
He was sent to Contra Costa County to steal dynamite—break into a box car
and steal five or six hundred sticks of dynamite—and then he was to put some
of it at Tottens & Brant’s planing mill. I am a member of the millmen’s union
and general organizer of the carpenters, so that would directly connect me with
it. And he was to put one plant under one part of the Sperry flour mill and
thereby directly connect the State Federation of Labor with that, which had had
an active boycott against this institution for some time; and also place a plant
under the Sampson ironworks, which could connect up the metal-trades depart-
ment in that locality. And then he was to fill my suit case full of dynamite in
the room at the Clark Hotel, and he was to take another suit case full of dyna-
mite and check it at the Santa Fe Station and place the check in Tveitmoe’s
pocket during the meeting of the State Federation and then arrest Tveitmoe
and me, and then the rest would follow. Nine out of ten of the men would
have believed it, and if it had been pulled off everyone would say, * Gee! Johann-
sen and Tveitmoe should have had better sense.” Oh, it is fine! If you have
the price you don’t need fo use so much violence. You can make the other
fellow do it. That was the program. -

Of course he got caught at it. He got caught with his suit case of dynamite;
and, of course, he was a coward and a crook all the time, and he would work
for three sides, if there were three sides. He would work for anybody for
that matter. I really felt sorry for the fellow. He told me; and I told those
fellows I would not prosecute him; I would treat him like Christ treated the
prostitute, Go away and sin no more. I didn’'t want to prosecute him. It
was a good thing, to tell the truth about it. X am only sorry for him. He was
a poor devil and had a wife and children, and she felt awful bad about it; and
he told me that he would never go into that kind of a game again; and I don’t
suppose he will.

But Brokaw was indicted also. Brokaw was in charge of the fighting forees
of the Merchants & Manufacturers in Stockton. One thing I admire about
those men, they were bold about it and fresh about it. They took their gunmen
and brought them down there and took them in an automobile. They didn't
know, of course, that we had women in Stockton that had some spirit. We
organized 30 militant women in that city of Stockton, and those women—oh,
they were fine! They were not handicapped with any philosophy. They
didn't have any program to save the world, If they thought that they could
see something good in the A. 1. L. or in-the I. W. W. they were glad to accept
it. I suppose they would accept it even in the Republican or Democratic Purty
if they could have found it; and they may find it some day If they look long

It
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enough. I don’t know. Of course we had to instruct them, and I had to get
them out, and I had an awful time with them. They didn’t know anything
about discipline and obeying orders. They just wanted to know what we
wanted done. We told them we would like to see them go out on the picket
line and not to use the word “ scab,” and those words which were considered
vulgar and bad form and liable to suit; and we told them it was much better
to punch a man in the nose first and explain it afterwards than it was to tell
him beforehand; there was no use getting arrested for just threatening a
fellow. So they were all right, though.

The biggest bunch of scabs was down on what we call the West Side School
Building. So I took those women down with me—or rather I meant I went
down with them. I had four men who volunteered their machines. They gave
me their cars, seven-passenger cars, every day from 4.15 until 6 o'clock. I had
charge of all the pickets. I was the captain of all the pickets of all the unions.
I got these machines and took these women down in front of this building. I
told them that they were to stay there but they were not to call them scabs; and
it is awful bhard to keep a woman’s tongue still, but they done fine. And so
there were about 30 men around there and about 20 women, and pretty soon
along comes the patrol, and the chief of police was a very decent sort of a
fellow. They say he was a poet. I don’t know how he became chief of police
if he was a poet, but he was really a decent sort of fellow; but I knew if there
was any demonstration on the part of our people in his favor it would not be
a very good thing to do; and I also appreciated that it would be very easy to
start something—start a fight—and I did not want to have that done. So,
after the patrol wagon came and stopped about a hundred feet away from
where the pickets were, along comes an automobile with six of these gunmen
in it. Oh, that was fine! Well, they stopped right in the middle of the crowd
of pickets; and these women—I couldn’'t hold them any longer. 'These women
just went after the automobile, three or four on each side of their machine,
and they went for them; and they would say, “I.ook! Don’t he look like a
gunman?’ “Now, how would he like for his mother to see him now?”
“ Wouldn't he be ashamed for his mother to see him?* “And wouldn’t he be
ashamed when he went back to meet his sister?” And all that kind of thing.
And it was too much for them. They couldn’t stand it. 'They ran down to
the next corner, and ran to that corner and this corner, and the women after
them. Oh, it was fine! : :

Well, finally we discovered that there was no number on the automobile,
and undoubtedly they were expecting to start something, and it would not be
easy to follow them. The women noticed that and insisted on arresting them.
There was a policeman on the corner, and they got hold of him and had them
arrested, and when they came to jail they searched the machine and found 12
pick handles about that long [indicating] and 12 blackjacks and a six-shooter
about that long [indicating] on each one of them. They all admitted that they
were hired by the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Association, and I understand
that the officers admitted before the commission that they had hired those men.
There were 12 pick handles, 12 blackjacks, and 6 big guns. Those men have
never been fried, the cases were never called, they were out on bail of $100, and.
of course, they disappeared. The women handicapped them. The women were
all right. They horsewhipped the president of the chamber of commerce on the
street. Of course, that was fine. I didn't know anything about it, neither did -
the strike eommittee, when, all of sudden, four women came up the street with
horsewhips and were going by the office, and the strike committee said, * You
will have to go out there; they must cut that out; they can't walk in Tront of
here with, horsewhips;” and I went out and told them, and they wouldn’t listen
to me, and then Woods, one of the strike committee, went out, and one of the
little women came up to him and said, “ I suppose you are a Sunday-school
man.” That got him, and he went back.

They got their man, thodgh, Mantley, the president of the chamber of com-
merce, and the next day the women were arrested, and the man was arrested,
and ‘here is what they finally settled on: The attorney for the Merchants &
Manufacturers’ Association and the attorney for our side came in and got this
agreement, that Mrs. Palmer and Mrs. Hines should be dismissed, and Mrs.
Cotte should plead guilty, she was an I. W. W,, or at least she thought she
was. She was red-headed, and had a lot of fire, but she wore the I. W, W,
button, and the Merchants & Manufacturers employers thought they would have
to convict her, and she had to agree to plead guilty with the understanding
that the man that got horsewhipped would have to pay the fine.: So that was
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agreed to. Well, after that was done, of course, these women felt that they
could do anything and get away with it. I had quite a time to manage them
after that, but we kept them pretty well. The fight was finally settled, and
things are going along very well there. The union has agreed to withdraw the
‘hboycott, and the Merchants & Manufacturers and employers agreed to retract,
or rather to rescind their resolution adopted on the 26th of June, declaring for
an open shop, so that things are peaceful in Stockton now.

Commissioner WEINsTock. In Stockton.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. In Stockton. I don’t know what the newspapers would have
done if a laboring man, such as me or Tveitmoe, had been arrested under
similar cirecumstances as Emerson, and made a confession, but I imagine, with-
out being prejudiced or anything, that they would have given more publicity to
that than they did to Emerson. I don’t know how you are going to correct
those newspapers; they are hard people to deal with.

I know of no instance where professional strike breakers having deliberately
waylaid and murdered active members of labor unions, where they have not
been defended to the very last by the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Associa-
tion. I am not saying that in criticism, I think they should defend them,
especially if the enemy is the Merchants & Manufacturers or National Erectors’
Associations. -

No intelligent man or woman who has a strong sense of social justice will be
satisfied with the manner in which labor has always been treated, so long as
the poor go to jail and the rich go free. There is no equality before the law.
It is unreasonable to conceive of a situation where a man without means and
few friends will attain the same consideration in a court of justice as a man
with plenty of means and plenty of friends.

During the Darrow trial in Los Angeles for jury bribery, 11 different people
were given imununity by the State in the hope of convicting Darrow. It would
be an insult to human intelligence to draw any other deduction than this:
The question of law and order and so-called justice was secondary in the
consideration of the public officials of that county as compared with the mad
desire to blacken the character of men who had made at least some effort fo
relieve the weak from the constant oppression of the strong.

In the Ford and Subr cases in California, these men are at present im-
prisoned in the penitentiary convicted on a charge of murder, notwithstanding
the fact that the conditions of the hop fields—and I want to say in connection
with that matter, the Ford and Suhr case, there were four men on trial. If
they had been anybody else except hoboes or I. W. W, if you will, they would
have had immediately competent counsel, and would have in all probability been

able to have separate trials, and the public would have had an opportunity to

make some investigation before those men were convicted. Those who attended
the trial seemed to be so optimistic, seemed to think that the evidence in that
case was so meager and so far from anything like a charge of murder, that
there could not be anything else except an acquittal. The judge that tried that
case, his son is a member of the carpenter’s union in Marysville. I am a mem-
ber of the carpenter’s union, and general organizer of that organization, and
work almost entirely in California. That union was requested by the son of
the judge that tried the case to pass a resolution prior to the trial that these
men, in the judgment of-the carpenter’s union, would get a fair trial. After
the conviction this same son of the judge came to the union and asked them to
pass a resolution that they had had a fair trial, and the carpenters’ union,
I am glad to say, refused to acknowledge that Ford and Suhr had had a fair
trial. g

= In San Francisco five or six women were organizing defense committees. Of
course, they were in a sense not directly associated with the labor movement,
but they were sympathizers. Some have means; they all had good clothes,
and most of them were good looking, and they were in a very sympathetic
attitude in all instances, and believed in the social war that is being waged
everywhere, and so they came in to see what could he done, what we could do
to help. I was with them and also with the attorney, chief counsel for the
defense. I told those women I thought that labor would be interested in them
if they had the time and inclination to make a canvass. They canvassed every
union in San Francisco and in Oakland, and most of the women’s clubs and
churches, and not a one that I have been able to learn, not in a single instance
were they met with opposition, and they raised in a period of six weeks in
those cities $4,000 for the purpose of investigating these cases, and taking
~an appeal and so forth, and -the matter is now before the governor, and I
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hope and Dbelieve that the governor will pardon those men on the ground that
they were railroaded by the hop owners.

It is my opinion that the employers should be held at least as much re-
sponsible as so-called labor leaders are for the social unrest which is rampant
throughout. the country seeking and waiting for expression. Tailing to find
it in one form, it invariably takes another.

It is not always the question of what we like or dislike. It is in many in-
stances our prejudice and lack of understanding which prevent an opportunity
to find the real source of corruption, which, after all, should be found and re-
moved if we desire to eliminate the social disease commonly called poverty.

That is all that is the matter. If people have plenty to eat they can smile.
I know X can; I don’t know how you fellows feel about that.

The manufacturers’ as$ociation don’t want labor to strike; it don't wang
them to organize; it does not want them to become Socialists. Of course, they
don’t want us to strike except a nice, little strike, a sort of Salvation Army
strike. They don't want us to organize and don’t want us to become Socialists.
We would not be good citizens then; and they don’t want us to be anarchists.
Some people think that they are anarchists; if they are, I don't suppose we
want to be. They don’t want them to be single taxers, and they don’t even wang
the working class to get scientific information on the limitation of families.
That is against the law, too. And just at present, just the same as it was
8 or 12 years ago, I venture to say that between now and a year from now that
the American people, and especially the working class, will be threatened
by Wall Street if they vote the Democratic ticket.

You know when Wall Street locks out the American people, which they do
occasionally, the newspapers call it a panic. It is nothing at all but a lock-
out; you are locked out, and the newspapers want you to say it is a panie,
but the real fact is the American people are locked out for selecting a na-
tional administration that Wall Street objects to.

I don't know whether I have anything else to say or not.

Chairman WarLsgH. We may have to ask you to stay over to-night.

Mr. JoHanxseEN. I don’t like this town; I don’t like the atmosphere of this
city. "

Chairman Warss. Commissioner Weinstock has some questions to ask you.
We will proceed a while and see how we get along.

Commissioner WrInsTock. I have in my hand here, Mr. Johannsen, a pam-
phlet entitled “ Some Recommendations Submitted to the United States Commis-
sion on Industrial Relations by the American Anti-Boycott Association, pre-
pared by Walter Gordon Merritt, associate counsel.”” In it I find certain in-
dictiments and certain charges

Mr. Jouanxsen. Was that the man that testified here just previous to me?

Commissioner WEeEIxsTocKk. No. Certain indictments and certain charges
against organized labor and I feel you should be accorded an opportunity to
answer. The first statement that was made is the following [reads]:

¢ Organizations of workmen have been welcomed and encouraged in this coun-
try, and the right to strike is recognized as a necessary defense agains{ oppres-
sion. ‘Thank God, we have a system of law where men may sirike,” said
Abraham Lincoln, and our people say amen. DBut these bulwarks agninst op-
pression have become oppressors, and have writfen info our history In recent
yvears a manifestation of oppressive power so recklessly and inhumanely exer-
ciged, and industrial crimes of so grave a character that even their true friends
see the necessity for the firmer hand of government. Lawlessness and discon-
tent have been encouraged until there has grown up in our midst, within the
circles of organized labor, a group of lawbreakers who, with pernicious
sophistry, too often repudiate the ordinary claims of decency and humanity.
“I did what'I did for a principle, said J. B. MeNamara. To deprive a noncon-
formist worker of his job and drive him from his trade; to destroy the prop-
erty of those who employ any nonunion men; to recklessly attack the business
of neutral and noncombatant merchants and manufacturers; to dynamite,
maim, and murder—these practices, opposed to all standards of civilization and
humanity, are prominent features of labor-union activities at the present. But
with few exceptions, no hand of organized labor has been raised to deter or
discipline the wrongdoers. Leaders make bold to publicly assert that the
sacredness of their cause justifies the support and retention of criminal oflicers.
When serious books in defense of such a position are plausibly written by inti-
mate observers, published by reputable houses and issued as serious reading;
when organized labor arrays itself in argument and act agninst Stale con-
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stabulary and militia, police and guards, injunctions, finncial responsibility,
enforceable contracts, and scientific management, what are we to conclude?

‘This bodes some strange eruption to our State,” unless forces arise to cure,

and control.”

Now, what comment, if any, do you care to make on that indictment? .

Mr. JomanwnseEN, In the first place, the whole thing is all right excepting one
thing, it is not true. That is the only thing that is the matter with it.

Commissioner WeINsTock. That is, specifically, you would deny as a repre-
sentative of a labor organization that * lawlessness and discontent have been
encouraged until there has grown up in our midst within the circles of organ-
ized labor a group of lawbreakers who, with pernicious sophistry, too often
repudiate the ordinary claims of decency and humanity.” You would deny that
* to deprive a nonconformist worker of his job and drive him from his trade, to
destroy the property of those who employ any nonunion men ”——

My, JoHANNSEN. You had better separate that.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Very well, we will take it up seriatim.

Mr. JomaxwyseN. What do you mean, do I helieve in discriminating against
a nonunion man? If you do, I say, absolutely.

Commissioner Weinstock. The charge made here is that you deprive a non-
conformist worker of his job and drive him from his trade.

Mr, Jormaxnsen, Certainly. What do you mean by nonconformist worker?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. A nonunion man,

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Certainly.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. And to destroy the property of those that employ
any nonunion men. In other words, the charges made are that as an organiza-
tion labor does not hesitate to destroy the property of those that employ non-
ubion men,

Mr. JoganNnsEN. That can not be answered without the specific situation.
Suppose there was a certain house burns down in a certain place, at a certain
time, and they would say, “ Did union labor do that?” and I couldn’t an-
swer it.

Commissioner WEINsToCcK. You brought up the McNamara case?

Mr. JoEaNNsSEN. What I meant to do was to compare the sins of the organ-
ized workers with the employers.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Suppose both are guilty?

Mr. JoBaANNsSEN. They ought to both go to prison.

CGommissioner WeINsTocK. Do you believe in destroying the property of those
who employ nonunion men?

Mr, JoHaNNSEN. That depends on circumstances.

Commissioner WeINsTOCK. Do you in the McNamara case?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I don’t care to justify them; it is up to them. I don’t know
what I would do until I got up against it.

Commissioner WeinsTtock. But teil us what you understand is the attitude
of organized labor in this sort of a fight. Do they justify such acts?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I can tell you what I do, the places where I talk to organ-
ized labor, and what my judgment is as to how I find the membership; that is
the only thing I have to go by.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes, sir; I think that would be of interest.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Well, when I got into Butte, dMont., I spoke to every union
there, including the miners’ union; that was prior to the eruption in Butte.
The miners’ union a very peculiarly constituted organization there; they had
about 8,000 different members in what you might call four different groups;
about 2,000 are Irish Catholics and work at it; about 2,000 Socialists; their
chief aim is in the capture of the ballet, and they work at that; and about 2,000
were I. W. W.s; of course, they work at-that; and the rest of them are what
they call “Cousin Jacks,” I think—Cornish miners—and those four factions
were all interested in that union to shape its policy at different times, with the
result that there was considerable interest in that union; more than the ordi-
nary interest, and at election time a good deal of interest. When I spoke there
I outlined what the iron workers were up against, the social background of it,
how hard it was to fight the Steel Trust, how they used the other industries,
how the carpenters and the longshoremen, the sailors, the other workers in
that field advised, * Wait, wait, wait.” They worked 12 hours a day, 7 days a
week, for an average of $8 or $9 a week. I found out that the iron workers
voted to fight, and that that was the only thing left for them to do.

Commissioner Weisstock. What was that?
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Mr. JoraxnseEN. Solidarity, or dynamite, or anything you want to call it. T
don’t care what yau call it.

Com:nissioner WEINSTOCK. Are we to understand from what you just said
that grievances

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Let me finish this.

Commissioner WEeINsTOoCK. Let me finish my question. 7That the real or
imaginary grievances of the iron workers justified them to dynamite——

Mr. JomaxxseN. That is the way they felt about it; I couldn’t say as to that.
You might feel that way if you had been an iron worker.

Commissioner WeinsTocK. Do you think they were justified?

Mr. JomaxxseN. I was not there.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You don’t have to answer that question unless
you want to.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. You know I am under indictment myself, and I don’t care
to answer it. I don't think I am competent to answer it. I have a pretty
good job, and don’t suffer personally. I think MeGillicuddy, of Maine, in the
House of Congress, a number of years ago, said, “ If I was an iron worker I
would have done like they did.” That was right in the Congress. 1 say this to the
union men, to our friends, to the enemies; they talk about the 21 lives that were
taken in Los Angeles. I don’t hesitate to say that no man has a right to take
another man’s life; he can't take something that he can not give back; but I
do say this 21, 21, 21 lives lost is not all. Why don’t they say something about
the 300 or 400 or 5,000 or 10,000, compare their sins with the iron workers; put
on the searchlight, let the whole truth be told, send them all to prison, that is
satisfactory. We object to your justice on the ground that the rich go free
and the poor go to jail.

Commissioner Weinstocx. The next charge is that organized labor reck-
Iessly attacks the business of neutral and noncombatant merchants and manu-
facturers.

Mr. JomaxxsEN, That is not true,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK, You deny that?

Mr. JoraxxSEN. Those fellows are as “buggy” as an I. W. W,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK., Are we to understand, then, that you deny that the
noncombatant merchants and manufacturers

Mr. JomanNsEN. What do you mean by noncombatant? Men that don’t fight
you? Do you suppose we fight a man that don’t fight us?

Commissioner WEeINsToCK. Here is a merchant that advertises in a paper,
and the printers are on strike on that paper, and they come to the merchant and
say, “ You take your advertisement out of that or we will ruin your business.”

Mr. JomaxnseN., I wish we were that well organized.

Commissioner WEIxsTocK. He has done no wrong in this case? You deny
that is done? T 4

Mr. JomaxnseEN. Of course, it is not done; I wish it were done.

Commissioner WeInNsTocK. The next charge is they resort to dynamite, maim,
and murder; that these practices are opposed to all standards of civilization
and humanity, and are prominent features of labor-union activity at the present
time; but, with few exceptions, no hand of organized labor has been raised
to deter or discipline the wrongdoers. Is that denied?

Mr. JomaxxseEN. No; nothing has been done to discipline the wrongdoers;
we always do, but we don’t take the Anti-Boycott Association for a judge.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Can you cite any instance where a member of
vour organization, or labor organization, has been expelled for resorting to

violence in labor trouble or breaking laws?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. So far we have not decided to try that; the Manufacturers
& Merchants’ association and other associations have control of all of the
police departments. F

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You have no case that you could cite?

Mr. JoHANKSEN. No, sir; I would be ashamed of them if I had.

Commissioner WEeINsTOCK. Leaders make bold to publicly assert that the
sacredness of their cause justifies the support and retention of criminal officers.

Mr. Jomaxnsen. That is not true.

Commissioner WEIxsTock. Criminal officers have been rejected and have
been thrown out of the organization?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. What do you call eriminals? Let them show the case
and I can answer,

Commissioner WeiNsTock. Men that were convicted of crime?

Mr. Jouannsen, Let them show the case.

"
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Commissioner WEINsTocKk. Take this very case, this dynamite case. Mr.
Frauk Ryan, president of the union; he was convicted and sentenced—— -

Mr. JoEANNSEN. He was reelected up until the last convention. Thank the
Lord for that; they had that much courage.

Commissioner WeINsTock. That would corroborate the charge made here?

Mr. JomanxseEN. That is up to the iron workers to answer why they re-
elected him. If you had suffered like they have, you might be able to
answer. :

Commissioner WEeinsTocK. The next statement is this: “ It seems needless
to array facts—a parade for Sam Parks on his way from Sing Sing; the dyna-
miiers defended by the American Federation of Labor, reelected to office by
the iron workers, officially recognized by the federation without protest after
conviction, met by a public procession of applause at Fort I.eavenworth when
on their way to prison. In that prison President Ryan performs his official
duties and renders his official reports as president of a union of 10,000 members,
and a part of the federation.”

Mr. JouaxnsEN. I don’t know whether it is true, but I hope it is true.

Commissioner WeIxsTock. Then, it is not disputed, is it?

Mr. JoransseEN. 1 want to say before you go any further, if you want to be
fair in fthis matter, I think the only way for me to answer that question is
for you to give me that book and let me write a book in answer to it, and that
would take two weeks.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You are sufficiently conversant with the facts?

Mr. JomannxseN. You want to compare our sins with their sins, and I want
to.show you their sins.

Commissioner WEeINsTOCK. You have already pointed out their sins, and
they state your sins here, and here is an opportunity for you to answer for the
record ; otherwise this would appear in our record uncontradicted.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I see; oh, that is your purpose?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Another statement here reads as follows:

“Though there are cities where markets are monopolized for union products,
and this fact is well known, prosecuting attorneys remain inert. ‘Do you want
to embarrass the administration? inquired one district attorney. A strange
commentary is it that men who entered into a nation-wide conspiracy to dynh-
mite buildings and thereby destroy human life should only be tried and pun-
ished for transporting dynamite. Would you punish a murderer for carrying
eoncealed weapons?”’

Do you care to comment on that?

Mr. JomannsEN. I don’t care to pass any judgment on anybody, not even on
Drew; I don’t care to pass judgment on people; I am not a judge.

Commlscloner WeInsTock. We have heard a good deal in this commission,
Mr. Johannsen, of the courts failing to give the workers justice. Now, here we
et the other side of the story. The writer of this pamphlet goes on to make
this statement: "’

“1In a recent case against John Mitchell and the United Mine Workers a per-
manent injunction was dismissed on appeal by three Federal judges, who held
that in cases of this character ‘ a reasonable delay in the issuance of the writ
would have a tendency to bring about a settlement between the parties.” To
escape the displeasure of organized labor, this court recommends that relief be
temporarily withheld from the persons injured, in the belief and hope that the
delay will compel the injured person to surrender his rights and accept the
terms of the lawbreakers. A Federal judge in New York, acting upon a similar
conception of his duties. dented a preliminary injunction against boycotting,
while admitting that authority would probably compel the issuance of a per-
manent injunction when the case was reached for trial. The plaintiff, unable
to survive the delay, was compelled to unionize, and delay ‘ had the tendency to
bring about a settlement.” There is something more cminous than coincidence
in this same abnormal conclusion of different judges in different parts of the
country, and it illustrates the fact that even in Federal court the wind blows
from a different quarter than popularly believed.

“The emergency which led to the invention of preliminary injunctions and
the reasons which support their issuance in behalf of all litigants when delays
can not he endured are forgotten and the remedy summarily ended by legisla-
tion. With such decisions, those who can not survive until final hearing—and
they are many—are lost. Courts algo show a notable aptitude and inclination
to nvold the issues in important and well-presented eases, thereby leaving
present nnd future Hlgnnts in o state of uncertainty.  One judge continued an

[
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injunetion on condition that no attempts would be made to enforce it, and com-
nmunicated that condition to the defendants. Is that the way to cultivate re-
speet for court decrees? Doesn't that explain why Gompers publicly proclaims,
*Go to hell with your injunctions’®? Other judges make strange efforts to
settle such cases or try to pass the responsibility over to some associate. Is
this the question that men are afraid of?”

Do you care to make any comment on that?

Mr. JoHaNNsEN. Ixcept to say that I don’t recognize any right under any
circumstances of a judge to issue any injunction against a laboring man on
strike, if such injunction was issued. -

Commissioner WeinsTock. Would you respect it?

Mr. JormaxxseN. I got four or five of those things against me in Stockton;
they were served on me, and the strike committee said we would have to be
careful and not break into jail. I don’t think the power of an injunction goes
much beyond the courage of those who are enjoined. I think that if a person
is convinced in his own mind and in his own feelings that his cause is just,
that his demands for an increase in wages, or whatever the fight may he—in
Stockton it was against the breaking of our unions—if you think and feel you
are right, why, then go ahead, and never-mind about those pieces of paper. We
didn’t pay any attention to them, except this: The attorney advised us not to
make any comment to the publie, which we didn’t; but I went and got 75
strikers, and there was a special house which was designated—I think the
Sutter Hotel—and I instructed the pickets, and they all obeyed instructions;
they were served with injunctions and they left, and then they served them
again and they left, and kept that up until they didn’t have any more paper,
end then there wasn’t any more trouble,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Are we to infer from what you say, Mr. Johann-
sen, that if a man or group of men have any real or fancied grievances they are
justified in defying the law?

My, JoHaNXNSEN. Oh, real or fancied?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Real or fancied; I don’t know what you mean. That is so
indefinite.

Commissioner WerInsTock. I may have, for example, what I believe is a real
grievance, but which may prove to be only fancied.

Mr, JoEANNSEN. After you prove it to us we change our opinion; see?

Commissioner WeiNsToCK. Let us limit it to real grievances; would you say
that any man or group of men that have any real grievance is justified in taking
the law into his own hands or ignoring it?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. My advice to labor would be, if I was asked for my advice—
I am not sure I would take the stump—if you are sure you are right, if you
are convinced of judicial invasion of your rights, stand for your rights and take
the consequences. Don’t engage any attorneys or anybody else.

By the way, this policy was recommended by the President of the American
Federation of Labor at the Denver convention. if my memory is right, and the
committee brought in a report at that convention for labor to take that attitude,
not so much because of contempt of the judges, but because we found that the
policy of the National Manufacturers’ Association was to use this thing to drain
our treasury by making us employ high-salaried counsel, and spending our
money for lawyers instead of bread.

Cominissioner WEINSTOCcK. You were telling wus, Mr, Johannsen, about the
numerous instances where the employers had employed gunmen?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Numerous? Why, every place.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Well, let us call it every place.

Mr. JOHANKSEN. Sure.

Commissioner WEeINsToCcK. Do you know of any instances where organized
labor has employed gunmen?

Mr. JoHANNSEN, No.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Were you here the other morning when the police
commissioner of New York City; Mr. Woods, testified?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes; I heard him testify.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Let me refresh your memory by reading the testi-
mony glven by Mr. Woods before this commission [reads]:’

* Commissioner WeINsTock. As a result of your investigation, what have you
found to he (he method of procedure in industrial troubles: do these gangsters
nl'l'»t'l' Ihetr pervieed to both stdes and take the highest bidder, or do they confine
thelr operntions il ofter thelr serviees to one skde of the lubor trouble?
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“Mr. Woons. I should not say it was ‘offering their services,” but the result
of our investigation shows a course of procedure like this: There would be a
strike, and the strikers would retain some gunmen to do whatever forcible or
violent work they needed. The employer, to meet this violence, would, in a
comparatively small percentage of cases, and not as many cases as the ginmen
were employed on the other side, would hire a private detective agency.

“ Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Now, when the unions employed these gunmen,
what function were the gunmen expected to perform? ;

“ Mr. Woops. To intimidate workers that were hired to take the place of the
strikers. :

“ Commissioner WEINSTOCK. That is, so-called scabs?

“Mr. Woopns. Yes, sir; so-called scabs.

“ Cominissioner WEINsTock. Have there been instances where there has been
violence against the so-called scabs?

“Mr. Woops. Yes, sir.

“ Commissioner WEINsTocK, To what degree?

“Mr. Woops. Oh, very strong violence.

“ Commissioner WriNsrock. Ilave they committed murder?

“ Mr. Woops, Yes, sir; L think that is being brought out now. As I remember
I, lust night in the newspaper article there were three indiétments for murder
in the first degree.

* Commisgsioner WeINsTocKk. There is no limit, then, to what degree they will
go to intimidate the so-called scabs? ki

“Mr. Woops. No. Now, there was an innocent man who was noticed a good
deal in the newspapers a while ago by the name of Straus, who was shot and
killed on the east side, and the Dopey Benny gang was employed by the
strikers, and some other gangsters were employed by the employers; I can not
remember which particular gang it was. One of the Dopey Benny gang had
been killed by one of the other gang.

“ Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Competing gangs?

“Mr. Woops. Yes; one gang employed by one side, and one gang by the other
side. I may have my things a little twisted here, but the gang that killed the
member of the other gang was holding a ball, and the other gang came up to get
revenge for the Kkilling, and the man that they tried to shoot jumped behind
this perfectly innocent citizen, Straus, and Straus was killed.

- Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Now, are the so-called gangs of gunmen confined
to the East Side of New York, or are there other gangs in other parts of the
city ?

“Mr. Woopns. There are gangs in other parts of the city.

“ Commissioner WEINsTocK. In what other parts of the city, for example?

* Mr. Woons, There are gangs on the West Side. The gang—I think I am
Justified In saylng that the number and virulence of gangs has been very much
reduced in the past 12 months. The situation we found was a bad situation.
The policy under the former administration had been to use mild methods; the
whole thing has been very much reduced in the last 12 months, but you will find
headquarters of gangs and places they hold out in the lower East Side, and the
middle West Side, and-in some parts of Brocklyn, on the upper East Side.

“ Commissioner WEeINsTocK. Is every member of the gang of one nationality
usually, or are they composed of mixed groups? For instance, on the East Side,
are they all Jews? ’

“Mr. Woops. No; they would be mixed groups.

“ Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Of different nationalities?

“Mr. Woops. Yes. Of course people are naturally nationally clannish, more
or less, and you naturally have a predominance of one nationality in one group.”

This testimony makes it clear that the unions employed gunmen and gang-
sters.

Mr. JomannseEN. That is, if it is true.

‘ Commissioner WEINSTOCK. As an evidence of that, we have this testimony
reads] : ]

“In how far have your investigations warranted this statement that appears
in the New York Herald of this date,” quoting from the New York Herald:

“*Several of the indiciments mention assaults upon members of the union,
and in this connection District Attorney Perkins said last night that the reign
of lawlessness was caused by union leaders who wished to perpetuate them-
selves in power, who hired assassins to assault contenders in their own union
for their places, and who used their unjon offices to extort blackmail under
threats from employers.

..
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“¢ Seven men are indicted for assault in a riot for control of a union. TFour
men are indicted for hiring Dopey Benny's band to go to a nonunion factory
and “ rough house ” the employees as they left and “ wreck ” the plant. A dozen
workers were wounded in that fight.

“¢Six union men are accused of extortion and assault in using violence to
collect a fine of $100 upon an employer. ¥our others are accused of hiring
the Dopey Benny band to shoot up a nonunion factory. Many shots were fired,
the factory suffered a damage of $1,000, and several persons were injured. Other
indictments mention cases where the hand was employed by union leaders to
attack nonunion workers, to wreck factories, and even to assault union men
who opposed the leaders.”” That is the end of guotation from the New York
Herald.

“ Does your investigation substantiate those stutements here?

“Mr. Woobs. Yes, sir; that is the general line of things that we found. All
that sort of thing.

¢ Commissioner WEINsTOCK, So that this is not mere newspaper exaggeration,
to your knowledge? ;

“Mr. Woobns. No, sir.”

Mr. JomannseEN. Well, I don’t know anything about this case in New York,
but I know something about common sense and what the process of reasoning
is, the ordinary process of reasoning. I know that every man who places any
confidence or any trust of any kind or description in another man who is will-
ing to hire himself to beat Some one up, to murder some one, or to slug some one,
without any other consideration than money, he certainly is an awful chump
who will take that chance.

Commissioner Garrerson. Did you see in to-day’s paper an article ascribed
to the district attorney of New York about Dopey Benny’s further testimony
to the effect that he was bragging on himself because he refused an offer of
$7,500 from the same employers to double-cross the labor-union men for shooting
them up? . =

Mr. JoHANNSEN. No, I didn’t see that; I wouldn't have anything to do with
a man that would hire himself for a purpose like that.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. I have one question here which T am not sure you
are in a position to answer, but if you are I am sure it will be of interest to us.
Do you know about the wages in the Steel Trust paid at the present time; do
you know how the wages in the Steel Trust paid at the present time compare
with the current wages paid before the Steel Trust was brought into life?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. No; I could not say as to that, except this: From what in-
formation I have been able to obtain from the report of the committee in Con-
gress, and also from Mr. Brandeis’s investigation, and Fitz—whatever it may
be; from all of the investigations made, I am convinced and led to believe that
in only one other tariff-protective industry outside of the steel industry that
pays lower wages, and that is the woolen industry, and then the steel industry.

Commissioner WeinsTocK. That is, the steel industry to-day pays the lowest
wage?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes; and has the highest protective tariff.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. But you don’t know whether the wages to-day are
higher or lower than before the Steel Trust was brought into life?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. No; I could not say.

Commissioner Weinsrock. I think it would he well to make a note of that
and try to get that information.

Mr. JouannseN. Do you want to adjourn?

Chairman WaLsH. Commissioner Aishton has some questions he wanted to
ask.

Commissioner ArsHTON. I Wwill forego my question.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I can come back in the morning, and go down to-morrow at
noon.

Commissioner ArsaTon. I want to ask only one question.

Mr. JomannseEN, I want to make one more statement myself.

Chairman WavLsH. Very well, then, you may return in the morning.

The commission will now stand adjourned until to-morrow meorning at 10
o'clock. ;

{Whereupon the commission adjourned at 5 p. m. Friday, May 14, 1914, until
Saturday, May 15, 1915, at 10 o'clock.) .
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WasHINgTON, D. C., Saturday, May 15, 1915—10 a. m.
Present, Chairman Walsh, Commissioners O’Connell, Lennon, Aishton, Wein-
stock, and Harriman.
Chairman WarsH. We will please be in order.
Mr. Johannsen, please resume the stand.

TESTIMONY OF MR. ANTON JOHANNSEN—Continued.

Chairman Warsg. Mr. Aishton would like to ask you some questions, Ar.
Johannsen.

Commissioner Arsurox. I believe I understood you, in giving your testimony
yesterday, to say that you were unwilling to permit the Anti-Boycott Association
to take their interpretation of the law, or to interpret for your people, I think
you said?

Mr. JoraxysEN, That is correct.

‘Commissioner Arsmurox. In reply to Commissioner Weinstock yesterday, in
regard to the obeying of the law by the workers, in cases where injunctions
were served, I think you said that you instructed the workers to interpret the
Iaw and obey the injunction according to their own judgment; is that also
correct? -

Mr. JoganxseN. I said that would be my advice; it would depend on cir-
cumstances; if I thought we could get away with it, it would be my advice.

Comumissioner AismrToxN. In the particular case in Stockton?

Mr., JOHANNSEN. Yes.

.Commissioner ArsHron. That was your attitude?

My, JOHANNSEN. Yes.

Commissioner ArsaToN. So that, in that particular case at Stockton you
advised and directed the workers to interpret the law according to what they
thought was right?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Oh, no; nof the law.

Commissioner ArsHToN. Well, the injunctions?

AMr. JoHANNSEN. The injunctions.

Commissioner ArsHToN. Which was the law, as interpreted by the court, I
believe; that was correct, was it?

Mr. JoHANNSEN., Yes; that was correct.

Commissioner AisuToN. Mr. Johannsen, this commission has been seeking the
causes of industrial unrest. It would be rather interesting if we were to
analyze the cause of industrial unrest in the individual. I didn’t quite catch
vour testimony, but I think you said your first employment was as a worker
in the Curtis Bros. Sash, Door, & Blind Co., at Clinton, Iowa?

Mr., JoHANNSEN. Yes. .

C'ommissioner Arsrron. And that you worked there for two or three years?

Mr, JoHANXNSEN. Five or six years.

Commissioner AisaTtox. Five or six years you worked for Curtis Bros.?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes.

‘"Commissioner ArsaToN. That is, George and Charley Curtis?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes.

Commigsioner Aisurox. One was a Senator for a number of years.

Mr. Jomaxxsex. He was a Congressman.

Commissioner AisHaTON. My reason for making the inquiry was that I
personally worked "in the carpenter shop myself of the Curtis Bro.'s plant
in Clinton, Iowa.

Mr. Jomax~sEN, Is that so?

Commissioner ArsmToN. Probably about the time you worked there, about
1898 or 1899, I think it was.

Mr. JoaaxxsEN. I left there in 1899.

Commissioner ArsaTON. You worked in the plant at the corner of Second
Street and Eleventh Avenue, the Sash, Door & Blind Works?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Between Twelfth and Thirteenth Avenues on Second Street.

Commissioner ArsHTON. I was rather curious—you seem to have this unrest
the commission has been trying to probe into, and I thought it would be rather
interesting for the commission to know what first started that with you. You
worked for the Curtis people, and they were fairly good people to work for,
were they not? J

Mr. Joranxssex. If you were willing to work cheap enough and long enough
it was all right. 3

n
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Commissioner AisHTON. It was a question of wages and lours that started
your unrest?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes.

Commissioner ArsgTox. What form did that take when you ceased connection
with them? :

Mr. JoHaxxsex. For instance, to give you an illustration of what I mean
by the unrest, what I believe has largely contributed to the causes of unrest
is the utter inability of the average employer to conceive anything *like a
human peint of view, a social point of view. TFor instance, when Curtis ran
for Congress I was just a boy and had a good deal more enthusiasm tham
judgment, and perhaps I have yet; but at any rate I made the statement that
he ought at least to furnish the employees in that factory with ice water in the
summer time. I made that statement and made it very unguardedly, and ¥
got discharged. He had an arbitrary power which one was unable to meet,
except through organization, and organization could only be fostered by @
larger social vision. The lack of social vision—you take the average employer
and you find he can talk about wood and coal and iron and railroads and land
and trees and ships and war, and everything except humanity ; that is just a
side issue with him. ;

- Commissioner ArsaTox. In that particular case, Mr. Johannsen, the unrest
ferment or idea started in the difference of opinion between yourself and Mr.
Curtis as to whether or not ice water should be furnished in the sash and
‘door company’s plant?

Mr. JoganNNsEN. If you want to put it that way.

Commissioner AtrsaToN., We want to get down to the facts as to what started
it. We have heard a great many statements in a mass of generality about
unrest and the oppression of employers and the state of the employee; all that
sort of thing. And there is probably a good deal of truth on both sides; but
the only way we can determine is by analyzing the individual cases, and you
seem to be quite an advocate of unrest by your testimony, and I think it would
be interesting to know what led up to it. The statement about Mr., Curtis and
his lack of appreciation of the needs of the employees, that might be further
enlarged on by calling on Mr. Curtis to give his side of the story; and from
my knowledge of Clinton in those days, it was not considered healthy to drink
ice water. There were a number of artesian wells there, and artesian water
was pumped through the mains

Mr. JorANNSEN. Well, we put oatmeal into it. It was considered safe then.

Commissioner ArsgToxN. That is a common practice, I believe, so there must
have been something else rather than the ice water. |

Mr. JoEANNSEN. That is just an illustration. I don’t mean to consider that

.of any great importance.

Commissioner ArsHToN. Of course, that didn’t create any great, tremendous
amount of unrest. I think you said you quit there and went on the road?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. No; I was on the road before I was married.

Commissioner AisaTow. Selling goods? :

Mr. JoaanNsEN. No; hoboing.

Commissioner ArsaTox, Oh, hobeoing? T thought there possibly might have
been something about your work on the road that caused unrest, but it was
hoboing and association with hohoes. I think you stated, Mr. Johannsen, in
your testimony yesterday, that the United States Steel Corporation and Ameri-
can Bridge Co., which I believe are the constituents of the Steel Corporation,
wielded tremendous power with all other steel companies and structural com-
panies, in that they controlled the material that was manufactured, and refused
to furnish it unless certain things were done. I judge from your testimony
they are in a position to refuse to furnish material to people. What actual
knowledge have you of that?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. I said it was not an unusual experience for an organizer
of ironworkers, when he came in contact with a contractor who was erecting
a steel bridge or a building, that invariably you would meet men who agreed
with your position as to the hours and wages and had no objection to unionists,
but who would inform you or advise you that if they should comply with your
demands and employ all union men and observe the union rules that the
erectors’ association had sufficient power and influence to bring about a
financial ruin of that individual. Y

Commissioner ArsaToN. Then the testimony as it shows in the record re-
garding the steel corporation and the American Bridge Co. controlling the out-
put is hardly correct? You mean to say that thé—I forget the name.
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Mr. JoHANNSEN. The erectors’ assoeiation.

Commissioner ArsaTON. The erectors’ association are the people that control
this. Is that the way the record should read according to your last testimony ?

Mr. JomaNNsEN. I think the record—I suppose what I said yesterday \\as
correct; I am giving it as near as my memory serves me.

Commmsloner AxrsHTON. Yesterday you specifically stated that the Umted
States Steel Corporation and the American Bridge Co., and I think you also
mentioned the erectors’ association.

Mr. JomanNsSEN. I said the United States Steel Corporation with its allied
companies, such as the Standard Oil Ce., controlled or exercised power that
the Government itself seemed unable to cope with.

Commissioner ArsHTON. Yesterday you didn’t mention the Standard Oil Co.
ég'le Cwe to understand that the United States Steel Co. and the Standard

il Co.

Mr. JomaNnsEN. Its influence on the Government and on the press and
public opinion.

Commissioner A1sHTON. What has that to do with material furnished to
outside concerns?

Mr. JomannseN. It has a great deal to do with it.

Commissioner Arsnron, Please say how?

Mr. JomanxseN. For illustration, suppose you come into a city like San
Francisco or Chicago, if the ironworkers’ union, for illusteation, would have
to make their own fight in any given large city without any allied interest to

help them, it would be difficult for them to do anything. It is equally true of

the National Erectors’ Association. It is perfectly reasonable, it seems to me,
to presume that wherever the National Erectors’ Assoeiation or the Amerlcfm
Bridge Co. or any other institution which has for its purpose the maintenance
and establishment of what they term the open shop, each has the moral sup-
port and financial support of these other institutions and individuals that stand
for that.

Commissioner AIsHTON. That is largely a matter of assumption, isn't it,
Mr. Johannsen?

Mr. JouanNsEN. No, sir; that is my experience.

Commissioner ArsHTON. Coming back to this matter of control of material
and the furnishing of material, is your statement made yesterday that the
steel -company and the American Erectors’ Association controlled the erecting
and controlied the furnishing of meaterial correet?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. So far as I know that is ecorrect.

Commissioner Arsmron. Your knowledge does not go other than as a matter
of general 1‘ep0rt among your people?

Mr. JorrannseN, That is quite generally aceepted h\ our people.

Commissioner Al.sum\ You made a statement as to the attituile of the em-

ployees at Gary. Is that a matter of report about the dewntrodden look and
that they did not dare to take a paper?

Mr. JonannseN. That is my personal experience. I went, together with Mr.
Nockels and John Fitzpatrick and with the general organizer, a fellow by the
name of Flood.

Commissioner ArsgroN. When was that?

Mr. JoHANKSEN. About two years ago, I think.

Ceommissioner ArsEToN. How long were you there?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I was in Chicago then abeut five or six weeks.
Commissioner ArsHroN. How often were you at Gary?

Br. JOHANNSEN. Once.

Commissioner AISHTON. Just once?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Isn’t that enough?

Commissioner A1sHTON. I didn’t ask you whether it was enough or not.
Mr. Jouan~seN. I meant.that the experience there was hopeless.
Commissioner AISHTON. You were there once?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner AisHTON. And Gary is quite a large plant, is it?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir; quite a large plant.

Commissioner AisaTox. And what particular part of the plant were you in
or gate were you at?

Mr. JomanNseEN. I have forgotten the name of the street. There are two or
three entrances there.

Commissioner ArsHTON. And your personal observation, together with what
you saw at that time——

Mr. JomannseN., Why, certninly.

i
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Commissioner AisaToN. Mr. Johannsen, you have stated in your evidence yes-
terday that the employers largely controlled the courts, and you were referring
then to this court at Indianapolis, were you?

Mr. JoHaANNSEN, No; I was referring to

Commissioner AisBTON (interrupting). Generally?

Mr. JomaxNsSEN, Generally. Well, of course, it is a matter of comparison,
you understand.

Commissioner ArsaTox. Yes: you made some definite statements about the
control of juries amd judges And other things, I believe. at Indianapolis.

Mr. JomaxnseN. Well, I don’t know about the control of the juries, but it
left that inference.

Commissioner ArsHToN, It left that inference?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner ArsHToN. Your knowledge is not definite on that, only from
inference?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. I am assuming, if you want me to correct my statement.

Commissioner ArsHTON, Well, what records have you to show about that?

Mr. JomaxNsEN., Well, for instance, it is a positive fact from documentary
evidence that a train was ordered by the agents of the Government on the 19th
day of November, 40 days before the trial closed, to carry 93 passengers from
Indianapolis to the penitentiary at Leavenworth. I believe or assume, from the
fact that the man who could order that train and make such a close guess as
to the number of passengers, must have had some reasonable fact to base his
estimate on, as to how many men would go. It is probable that they were
very close to the jury. I don’t know that they were:

Commissioner Arsgrox. So, so far as the record is concerned, whatever you
stated yesterday may be. some of that is from inference, andd the one fact you
have that you can produce proof of, that that train was ordered for 93 men?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner AirsHToN, You were at Indianapolis during this trial, were you,
Mr. Johannsen?

Mr. JoHaxnNsEN. Yes; part of the time.

Commissioner ArsHrox., What part of the time during this trial?

Mr. JoEANNSEN, I was there six days at one time, and three days another,
and two days another, I think, or such a matter.

Commissioner ArsaETON. You, at this time, were the organizer of Brotherhood
of Carpenters?

Mr. JoAANNsEN. No; at that time I was organizer of the State Building
Trades Council of California.

Commissioner ArsHTON. That is something similar to the State Federation of
Labor that they have in some States, is it, or is it another organization?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Well, it has some similarity ; only difference in it, in the
building trades and the State organization, our business is confined largely to
the question of industry. The State federation is confined more to the ques-
tion of advising social legislation.

Commissioner ArsHtox, This is another organization outside of the State
federation?

Mr. JorAaNnNseEN. Yes; it is an independent organization.

Commissioner Arsnron. And don’t take in all the trades?

Mr. JoraNysSEN. Only takes in the building trades,

Commissioner AISII'I()) 1 see. The building trades are members of the fed-
eration largely:

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes.

Commissioner ArsAToN. As well as members of this other?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner ArsHTON. What attracted you to Indianapolis; you were rep-
resenting whom?

Mr. JorAxNSEX. I attended a convention of the Brotherhood of Carpenters in
this city, Washington, in September, 1912, and on my return, going back to the
coast, I stopped off at Indianapolis; and at that time the executive officers of
the ironworkers who were on trial held a meeting and requested me—wanted
to know if I had the time and was willing to go out in the larger cities in the
Iast and to tell their story, and incidentally to raise some funds to help, to
assist the defense. I got permission from the Building Trades Council of Cali-
fornia and so I went to the different cities in the East.

SJommissioner ArsaToN, That is, you went to the different 01t1eq in the East.
speaking in the cause of the ironworkers and raising funds for their defense?




. (| 5
10690 REPORT OF COMMISSION ON INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS. : LABOR AND THE LAW. 10691
Mr. Jouax~NseN. That is correct. That anything that has any real social value can get little notice in the papers,
Commissioner ArsuTON. And you stopped, you say, three weeks in Indian- : unless it comes in such an exceptional or extraordinary way that it is real good
apolis? : news. Our suffering is very seldom good news.
Mr. Jomannsen. Well, I should judge, altogether about 10 days. * Commissioner ArseroN. Coming back to the concrete case of the press at
Commissioner AIsHTON., Were you engaged in soliciting funds in Indianapolis? ‘ Indianapolis, I did not see the Indianapolis papers, but don’t you think, Mr.
Mr. JoHANNSEN. Oh, no; you couldw’t raise any funds there. ) Johannsen, that the dastardly nature of the crimes that these men were accused
Commissioner ArsaToN. You couldn’t raise any funds there? of had something to do with the publicity, with the papers’ side?
Mr. JOHANNSEN. No. . Mr. JomaxnsEN. The point of view of the men who write the story certainly
Commissioner A1sHTON, What were you doing at Indianapolis? has something to do with it; that is what I mean. They can not get our point
Mr. JoHANNSEN. Oh, consulting with the defendants and watching the trial. of view, and I am not condemning them for it. ]
Commissioner AISHTON. And you represented nobody but the building trades Commissioner ArsHToN. You think that a man who is a newspaper man and
council, and by their permission you were there helping the ironworkers in their B engaged in writing news that his point of view is such that he can not give your
case? ] side a fair deal. Now, he is not an employer ordinarily ; he is an employee; and
" Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, sir. is it not fair to assume that if he could not give the point of view for the other
Commissioner AisaTON. Were funds furnished you for that purpose? side as well as of the worker? - y
Mr. JomannseN. I should say—to me personally, you mean? i Mr. JomannseN. No, sir. For instance, let me give you a specific instance
Commissioner ArsHTON. Yes, in Indianapolis. A man by the name of John Lofthaus, a member of the Mill-
Mr. Jormannsen. To pay my expenses? men’s Union, No. 42, of San Francisco, was subpeenaed by the Government as a
Commissioner Arsaron. Yes. witness and came to Indianapolis and was taken into a private room of the
Mr., JomannseN. Why, the State Building Trades Council took ecare of the ¢ district attorney’s office to be sweated, the same as all other witnesses, or nearly
expenses of my family while I was in the East, and the ironworkers paid my all other witnesses. He was taken into that private room, and there were pres-
railroad fare and hotel bill. s ent two Burns detectives, or detectives for the erectors’ association, I am not
Commissioner ArsTON. Who employed counsel for the ironworkers? Did sure which, but at any rate two detectives, and they are all alike, it don’t
you do that? make much difference who hires them; and in that room Lofthaus was asked—
Mr, JouaNNseEN. No; that was all arranged before I got there. was told what he knew. “ You know, Mr. Lofthaus, that Tveidmoe, secretary
Commissioner Aismrox. That was all arranged before you came, and you did of the Building Trades Union, paid money out of the treasury to hire dyna-
not have anything to do with that? h miters.” Lofthaus said, “I don’t know anything of the kind.” They said,
Mr, JoHANNSEN. No. “ You know it, and unless you testify to that you will be charged with perjury.”
Commissioner Arsarox. And there was no attempt made to influence the Lofthauis had the courage to call their bluff, which he did, and they never put
courts or anything of that kind by you or any of your associates? him on the witness stand, and they paid him $360 to get him out of town. That
Mr. JoHANNSEN. By me? was not published in the papers. You could not get it in.
Commissioner AisuToN. Yes. In another case the business agent of the carpenters’ union of Detroit, Mich.,,
Mr. JomannsEN. Of course not. I couldn’t influence no court. was on the witness stand for the defense, and the district attorney, Miller,
Commissioner ArsaToN. You spoke about the control of the press. What i made a charge in open court while this man was on the stand, “ This man, your
makes you think the press was controlled, Mr. Johannsen, at Indianapolis? honor, is guilty of perjury, and we want him held.” ¥e was held on a charge
Take ‘Indianapolis, for example; they have four or five newspapers. Tr of perjury, and he was dismissed without a trial or a hearing immediately
Mr. JomannseN. I can tell you that; but before that let me give you a little. after the court had adjourned, after the trial was over. The whole thing was
illustration. simply a scheme of publicity, in my opinion, to create an unfavorable atmos-
Commissioner ArsHTON. All right; go ahead. : phere in public opinion against our men.
Mr. JoHan~NsEN. When I was at the Darrow trial at Los Angeles—the first Commissioner ArsgroN. I think you said that the attitude of the press was
trial—I met “ Golden Rule.” What I eall “ Golden Rule” was Lincoln Stef- - largely, in these matters, determined by their lack of ability to get the point
fens. We called him “ Golden Rule.” He took me out to dinner one evening, of view on social questions. That is correct, is it?
and T discussed with him everything and nothing, and we came to the same Mr. JomanxsEN. That is one phase of it.
conclusion on both. And all of a sudden he said to me, “ Joe, I wish you would Commissioner ArsHTON. I do not want to take up too much time, Mr. Chair-
be indicted for murder.” I was somewhat flabbergasted. I asked him what 4 man.
. he meant by that. He says, “ Well, if you were indicted for murder and per- ! Chairman Warsw. Go ahead.

mitted me to advise the defense, I would have engaged for your defense some Commissioner ArsaroN. On this matter of peaceable picketing, this commis-
of the best eriminal lawyers in the country—not philosopher§ or poets, but real sion has heard a good deal of testimony about peaceable picketing. We have heard
ceriminal lawyers. You would plead not guilty, and we would have to agree ‘ some agent of an organization in Pennsylvania tell about peaceable picketing,
that the attorneys would defend you on the ground of emotional insanity.b Of i and that really was a very pretty picture; but I understand your idea of peace-
course I know you are crazy, but evervbody doesn’t, and of course you are in- \ able picketing in California is, according to the advice that was given these
sane on the labor question. Under that theory the defense would be permitted ladies, to punch them in the nose. Isn’t that it?

to introduce any testimony which would be considered as contributory to your ! Mr. JomannsEN. Oh, no; I want you to get my spirit.

}Tanity, and in that event', in such a tl‘i{_ll, every injustice that labor has suf- i Commissioner ArsaToN. That ,is_ \_Nhat we want_ﬂt(') get._ ;[‘he rtecord 'sl}lows
ered under the present social and economic system could be introduced as testi- (i that, however, the way I stated it; and if that is incorrect I would like to

m(zny on the grounds of its bging contributory—all about the Cherry mine disas- I have it corrected. ' o ]

ter and the Triangle Shirt disaster, and all these different lockouts and things, , Mr. JoHANNSEN. You can not get much feeling in a record.

mt“tll hun.:ﬁer anq stal'\'at:}on and oppression, and all the system could be exposed Commissioner AISH:I‘ON. I _\msh we could. ) ! his: That the o

ilmnlde lttI 1.11.0f()ctmc](l)';u-ge it wo_ulldt alltco]me oug; butt you llmo\\.- civilization couldn’t _ ' Mr. JOHAEII;':ISE?L l“ lllatoflel{lptslrl'(éi((lzet_oﬂclggv‘?’er\e\ a\seltvnzsu.wiolels a tri?ll"éogfnné

'— " € you might get hung, but it would make 3 i by reason o heir lack xperi rery 3 ak

story.” ¥ i = DTS Gl 0 tgl'eats to the scabs or strike breakers, and I tried to point out to them that
Commissioner Arsartos. That was the opinion of Steffens? it was much better to be arrested for punching a scab than threatemng a
Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes, . . scab. Of course, I advised them against punching the scabs or attacking
Commissioner ArsaTon. You said Steffens said them. I tried to persuade them in that way, or to show them that the mere
Mr, JOH)_.NNSEN (i_nterrupting). I said that was his story. And it strikes threatening of a scab did not get any results. ‘_‘ That gets you nO\v}”l,ere; you

me that while that might be somewhat extreme, it strikes me that that is a very can be punished for threatening as well as punching them in the nose.

good plcture of the psychoiogy and state of mind of the average newspaper man, ! l" 38819°—S. Doc. 415, 64-1—vol 11—40 ’
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Commissioner AisgroN. Naturally, the thing that would get the most results
would be to punch them in the nose?

Mr. JorannsEN. That does not logically follow. It means that if I was going
to do one of two things I would rather punch them in the nose than threaten
them and have the same penalty assessed against me for doing it.

Commissioner ArsHToN. I think that ereates the same impression that was
created by your testimony of yesterday.

I think that is all, Mr, Chairman.

Chairman Warssa. Commissioner Weinstock wishes to ask some other ques-
tions.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. I want fo call your attention, Mr. Johannsen, to
the fact that the record that is being kept here will, of course, become public
property, and that it will be a source of information to students all over the
country on both sides of the probiem, and therefore whatever is said here will
tend to make character in the minds of the students and the readers of the
output of these students for the witness and the sides they represent and the
issues that are at stake. In looking over this testimony of yesterday I notice
you make some pretty sweeping statements here, and I felt it was only fair
to you to give you an opportunity, if you cared to exercise it, to amend or
modify or correct the statements made. Let me read this one to you [reads]:

“ Commissioner WEINsTOCK. I may have, for example, what I believe is a
real grievance, but which may prove to be only fancied.

“Mr. JomaNNsSEN. After you prove it to us we change our opinion; see?

“ Commissioner WrInNsToCcK. Let us limit it to real grievances; would you
say that any man, or group of men, that has any real grievance is justified
in taking the Iaw into his own hands or ignoring it?

“Mr. JoEANNSEN. My advice to labor would be, if I was asked for my ad-
vice—I am not sure I would take the stump: ‘ If you are sure you are right, if
vou are convinced of judicial invasion of your rights, stand for your rights
and take the consequences.””

Of course, in plain language, this seems to defy the authorities. Now, I
think you ought to be afforded an opportunity to modify or change this, if
‘you care to do so.

Mr. JomannsEN. That is all right as it stands.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You prefer to leave it the way it is?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Sure, .

Commissioner WeinsToCcK. Toward the close of the hearing here last evening
Commissioner Garretson and you were discussing a situation in New York, and
in going over the testimony of Commissioner Woods, Police Commissioner
Woods, Commissioner Garretson asked you if you had read yesterday morn-
ing’s Sun, in which Dopey Benny, the head of the New York gangsters, in
‘his confession had made the statement that he had refused an offer of $7,500
from the employers’ association in New York to work on their side, and you
said you had not seen that. I also had not seen it, so last evening I got a copy
of yesterday’s Sun, and I was unable to find the statement that Commissioner
Garretson referred to, but I did find this. Let me read it to you and for the
record. This is the Sun of Friday, May 14, 1915, under the heading * Inquiry
shows labor ring as bloody assizes;” I will just take extracts from it, because
the article itself is rather lengthy. [Reads:]

“The deeper Assistant District Attorney Breckenridge delves into the alli-
ance between union men and gangsters the more starting becomes his discov-
eries. He has found and expects to prove that the despotic ring which ruled by
force in the garment workers’ unions resolved itself in a secret tribunal and
dealt out punishment to nonunion men and recalcitrant union members; to be
called before that body meant a beating, maiming, and in scme cases

- death. * * #

“ These mock courts termed ‘bloody assizes’ by their victims sat after strike
meetings of business sessions in halls that the union leaders hired in many
parts of the city and sometimes in local headquarters. After the ordinary
business was finished a few officials with some of their strorng-armed men would
form around a table with one man sitting as judge. They had what was known
as a bailiff, and the man accused was addressed as the defendant. * * *

“ Generally one or two men were tolled off to do the actual slugging. If a
man protested that he was not nonunion he was knocked down. If he became
so infuriated as to call his accuser a liar he was beaten into insensibility. Mr.
Breckenridge knows of three men who had ears cut off, and charges at least
one murder as the result of one of these trials. * * =*

i
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“There are no indictments against the employers, Mr. Breckenridge said yes-
terday, because there has been nothing brought out in the investigation to show
that the employers did more than try fo defend themselves against
assault. * * *

“¢We have got the gangsters and the labor men working against each other,’
he said, ‘and they are giving each other up. They are running for cover, so
deep into the system as the investigation gone, and they are cutting each
other’s throats in the effort to gain protection for themselves. There has never
been such a revelation.””

Now, if the statement that you made in your testimony wherein you went on
to show that the employers hired gunmen and detectives is true, and if the
statement made by Police Commissioner Woods of New York contained in the
press is also true. it would make it clear that you were in error yesterday

_ when the question was put to you, *“ Do you know of any instance where organ-

jzed labor has employed gunmen, and you answered no.” It would indicate
that neither side, if both sides are correct in their charges, that neither side
can come into court with clean hands; that both sides evidently resort to the
employment of gunmen and sluggers?

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Will you allow me to read into the record an
article in order to verify Mr. Garretson’s statement of last night? This is from
the Washington Times of yesterday. [Reads:]

“New Yorx, May 14.—Dopey Benny Fein, gang leader, whose confession lead
to the indictment by the grand jury of 34 labor leaders and gunmen on charges
ranging from assault to murder, refused offers of $7,560 to double-cross the men
who hired him.

“This statement was made to-day by Assistant District Attorney Brecken-
ridge, whe has charge of the case.

“ Fein declared manufacturers approached him and offered him $7,500 more
than he was receiving to use his gunmen against the unions that were employ-
ing him. Fein turned these offers down flatly. Breckenridge declared he had
substantiated Fein's statements by talking to different manufacturers.”

Now, in this morning’s Post, I read it coming down in the car. I can’t lay
my hand on it just now

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Then Mr. Garretson must have been mistaken in
the paper that he read; be said it was the Sun instead of the Times.

However, admitting that that is so, the facts would indicate that both sides
are guilty, or that neither side can come into court with clean hands.

Mr. JomANNSEN. The statement that you read in the paper, the fact that those
men have been indicted, or the statement made by Commissioner Woods, does
not convince me that it is true. I refuse to pass judgment on any man, no
matter where he is from or who he is on the mere indictment against him.
That doesn’t mean that he is guilty; neither does his conviction necessarily
mean that he is guilty. I would not want to pass any opinion, except what I
passed yesterday, that it does not seem reasonable to me that a union man,
especially an officer with any experience, would be so lacking in judgment and
in his information as to trust any man who was willing to slug another man
with no other consideration except money.

Commissioner WeinsTock. Then all that you say, Mr. Johannsen, on the one
side, could also be said with equal force on the other side; the charges made
by the unions against employers hiring sluggers?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. With this exception. 1 don’t think the other side are as
wise to that as we are. They have too much faith in gold.

Commisgioner WrinsTock. What has that to do with it?

Mr. JoANNSEN. That has a lot to do with it.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. I don’t get your point.

Mr. JorANNSEN. Everthing. If a man is paid, they think, he will do it and
not betray them. -

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. If you Qm that the indictment of sluggers hired
by organized labor and their convictions before courts and juries are not to
be accepted, then why can not that same thing be said on the other side?
What if sluggers and gunmen are convicted as employees of employers, what
then; would they still be innocent of the charges?

Mr. JogANNSEN. I presume they do say it, don’t they? Did you ever meet
a member of the manufacturers’ association that told vou they hired sluggers?

Commissioner WrINsToCcK. Yes, sir; you and I heard it in the city of San
Francisco, where they admitted it very frankly. You will remember that ques-
tion came up, that Commissioner Garretson asked Mr. Totten, a member of
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the association, * Why do you men hire gunmen?” and he answered by saying,
“Were you ever in a mob?” And Mr. Garretson said, “ I was”; and he said,
“Did you ever have half a dozen strikers or representatives of strikers jump
on you?” And Mr. Garretson said, “I am too smooth.” And Mr. Totten said,
“If I was as smooth an article as you are, I would not need them, either.”
There they frankly admitted employing gunmen,

Mr. JouanNsEN. He said in self-defense. They could not very well deny it
there, because we found the pick handles.

Commissioner O’CoNnNELL. Can I read the Post in here, an article from New
York of the 14th [reads]: s

“TEvEN LAWYERS IN THE NET.

‘“ Dopey Benny’s story involves, according to those-in the district attorney’s
office, not only labor leaders, cloak and suit manufacturers, but lawyers and
those who have to do with the conduct of justice in this city.”

Commissioner WEgINsTOCK. In your statement yesterday, DMr. Johannsen,
you brought up the McNamara case. May I ask whether you attended the Los
Angeles hearing?

Mr, JoumannseN, Certainly.

Commissioner WEINSTocK. You probably then will recall—were you present
when Job Harriman was on the stand?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. In the Darrow trial?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. No; before our commission?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. No; I was not present there,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. For your information, let me recite an incident
when Mr. Job Harriman was on the stand, and I was questioning him and I
said, “ You have been interested in labor organizations for years?” “ Yes,
sir.” “You are familiar with their spirit and aims and purposes?” ¢ Yes,
sir.” “Does organized labor stand for law and order?” “Yes, sir.” “Do
you know of any instances where organized Ilabor standing, as it
claims to stand, for law and order, has disciplined or expelled unionists who
have violated law and order by having resorted to violence in labor trouble?”
¢No.” *‘“What then, Mr. Harriman, is the answer to the charge made by or-
ganized labor against its opponents that it does not stand for law and order as
evidenced by the fact that it retains in high offices of trust and honor and re-
sponsibility men who have been convicted of crime?” He said, “ Well, you
must give me some specific or concrete case.” I said, “Let us take the case
of Frank Ryan, president of the Structural Iron Workers, who, after being
convicted, was retained in his position of international president.,” DMr, Harri-
man said, “Did you read the testimony in that case?” I said, “No; I did
not.”” He said, “ If you will take the trouble to read that testimony, you will
find that Ryan and his associates were innocent men railroaded infto prison.”

‘When I came to inquire about the testimony I discovered that it contained
only 25,000 pages of type matter, and life being short and I, living under pres-
sure, found it inconvenient to read 25,000 pages of type of testimony in order to
determine the guilt or innocence of Frank Ryan and his associates. Last
evening, however, there was placed in my possession a copy of the decision
rendered by the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Seventh Cir-
cuit, October term and session, 1913, in the case of Frank M. Ryan et al.,
plaintiffs in error, ». the United States of America. I find in this decision
those 25,000 pages of testimony were epitomized and condensed into a brief
form, and I want to read it into the record, and then I want to ask you a
question about it after I finish reading it.

Jommissioner O’ConNELL. The whole book?

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. No; just a page or two. Before I start to read
it, I want to ask you this question: Do_you, in common with Mr. Harriman,
believe that Mr. Frank Ryan and his associates were innocent men railroaded
into prison?

Mr., JoHANNSEN. What do you mean by innocent?

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That they were not guilty of the crimes charged
and of which they were convicted?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Of course I do.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You believe they were innocent men, railroaded
into prison?.

Mr., JoumaNwseN. I wouldn’'t want to put it that way exactly—railroaded.

Commissioner WEINSToCcK. Put it your own way.

LABOR AND THE LAW. 10695

Mr. JoaANNSEN. I am satisfied they never committed any crime against labor
or a better society.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. And therefore were unjustly convicted?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOocK. Now, this is a decision, not of the trial judge,
Anderson, whom you say was unfair

Mr. JomannsEN. I have read that very carefully.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK (continuing). Who you say was unfair in the trial;
but this is an opinion and decision of the circuit court of appeals, including
Judges Baker, Seaman, and Kohlsat, against whose integrity I have never
heard a word, and who seemingly went into the evidence most exhaustively
and most carefully. That will be demonstrated from the fact that they
released Mr. Tveitmoe and others, that the testimony in their judgment did not
justify a convietion. If they had not gone into it exhaustively in their review,
they would not have made those exceptions. This is a decision by the court
|reads] :

“The facts thus recited, as proven Dby the Government on the trial, may be
mentioned in part as follows:

“The nature of the contest between the International Association of Bridge
and Structural Iron Workers, of which ¢ all of the defendants except two that
were convicted were members,” and the American Bridge Co., and of the
ensuing general strike declared and supported by the association ¢throughout
the United States,” extending from 1905 continuously down to ‘the time of the
trial’ is described. In the early months it was attended by ‘numerous acts
of violence’ in various places, and commencing in 1906 dynamite was brought
into use ‘to blow up and destroy buildings and bridges that were being erected
by “open-shop” concerns,’” and such explosions starfed in the eastern part of
the country and ‘extended from the Atlantie to the Pacific’ in many places.
This course continued ‘until the arrest of the MceNamaras and MceManigal in
Aprily 1911  Almest 100 explosions thus occurred, ‘damaging and destroying
buildings and bridges in process of erection where the work was being done by
“ open-shop ” concerns.” And ‘no explosions took place in connection with work
of a similar character that was being done by * closed-shop ” concerns.” From
February 17, 1908, until April 22, 1911, 70 of such explosions occurred, 43 of
which were in connection with work either of the National Erectors’ Associa-
tion or American Bridge Co. and affiliated concerns, and 27 of the explosions
occurred in connection with the work of independent concerns in no way con-
nected with either thereof. Dynamite was first used together with fuse and .
fulminating caps, the fuse being generally about 50 feet in length, ‘and when
lighted the explosion would occur in about half an hour.” Nitroglycerin was
next brought into use provided with a clock and battery and attachments to
be used together with dynamite and nitroglycerin, constituting what was
termed an infernal machine, to be used in connection with the dynamite and
nitroglycerin in the destruction of buildings and bridges of ¢ open-shop- con-
cerns’; and ‘from this time forward the clock and battery was used in con-
nection with charges of dynamite and nitroglycerin in the destruction of life
and property.’

“These infernal machines ¢ were so made and arranged that they could be
and were set to cause the explosion to take place several hours after it was
set, so that the person setting the explosion could be hundreds of miles away
when the explosion took place.” The headquarters of the international asso-
ciation was at the outset in Cleveland, Ohio, but was removed to Indianapolisg,
Ind., early in 190G, and there remained. The various places in which the
several defendants were located are mentioned in various States. The dyna-
mite and nifroglycerin which were used for the explosions mentioned ¢ were
transported in passenger cars on passenger trains of common carriers engaged
in the transportation of passengers for hire into and over and across’ various
States named. Explosions took place ‘in all of the States named, and a num-
ber of times in some of them and were planned to be made in other States
named.” In connection with this work of destruction, ‘dynamite and nitro-
glycerin was purchased and stolen and various storage places arranged to con-
veniently store such explosives that were to be used in the destruction of
property in the various States’ referred to; and ‘such explosives were carried
and taken on passenger trains from such storage places in the various States
to various places in the other States where structural ironwork was in process
of erection,” and the various locations are named.
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“‘Large quantities of dynamite and nitroglycerin were at various times
stored in vaults of the association’ in Indianapolis and also in the basement
of the building. These storage places ‘ were so arranged that dynamite and
nitroglycerin could be readily obtained and transported from such place of
storage’ to other places for their use in destruction or property, also clocks
and batteries, as described, and fuse and fulminating caps, as well, in large
quantities, ‘all to be used in connection with the dynamite and nitroglycerin
for the destruction of property’; and some thereof were stored in the vaults
of the association at Indianapolis, ‘so that the same would be accessible for
immediate use in connection with any explosion desired at any other place
in the United States.” For the purpose of carrying such explosives, ¢ suit cases
and carrying cases were obtained and purchased, in which such dynamite and
nitroglycerin, cloeks, batteries, ‘fuses, caps, and attachments could be con-
veniently placed and carried by persons going from a place of storage to a
place in another State on passenger trains of common carriers, etc.” All the
explosions mentioned ¢ were accomplished with the materials, including nitro-
glycerin and dynamite’ so stored, and were transported ‘from said storage
plnce to the various places throughout the United States where such ex-
plosions occurred in suit cases and carrying cases by persons traveling upon
the passenger trains of common carriers,’ etce.

‘¢ Four explosions occurred in one night at the same hour in Indianapolis,’
and ‘ explosions were planned to take place on the same night two hours apart
at Omaha, Nebr., and Columbus, Ind., and the explosions so planned did
occur on the same night at about the same time, instead of two hours apart,
owing to the fact that one clock was defective. The explosions referred to at
Omaha and Columbus were all ‘ open-shop concerns,” and the infernal machines
used therein were taken from the storage places of said materials above set
forth. The ‘Times Building at Los Angeles was destroyed by the use of

dynamite’ on October 1, 1910, and 21 persons killed, ‘and immediately after
* the happening of this event arrangements were made to have an explosion in
the eastern part of the United States, as an echo in the East ¢f what had
occurred at Los Angeles.” Prior to ‘the arrest of the McNamaras and Mec-
Manigal,” seven or eight explosions were planned ‘ to take place in different parts
of the country widely separated on the same night.’ All the dynamite and nitro-
glycerin, ‘except the dynamite that was stolen, the batteries, clocks, caps,
fase and attachments, suit cases and carrying cases, as well as the expense and
work of carrying the explosives and articles to be used in connection there-
with, including the expense incident to the stealing of dynamite, were paid
out of the funds of the international association, and these funds were drawn
from the association upon checks signed by the secretary-treasurer, John J.
McNamara, and by the president, Frank M. Ryan,” plaintiff in error, * * *

‘“These basic facts directly bearing upon the issues are followed up with
connecting evidence of the following nature: Written correspondence on the
part of many of the plaintiffs in error, both between one and another thereof
and with other defendants, inclusive of the above-mentioned conspirators, to-
gether with letters from one and another of such conceded conspirators to one
of the plaintiffs in error and to other defendants, properly identified, consti-
tute one volume of printed record; and these letters furnish manifold evidence,
not only of understanding between the correspondents of the purposes of the
primary conspiracy, but many thereof convey information or directions for
use of the explosives, while others advise of destruction which has occurred,
and each points unerringly not only to the understanding that the agency
therein was that of the conspirators, but as well to the necessary step in its
performance of transporting the explosives held for such use. This line of
evidence clearly tends to prove and may well be deemed convincing of the fact
of conspiracy on the part of many, if not all, of the correspondents; and many,
if not all, of the uses of explosives therein referred to are established by other
evidence to have occurred, together with direct evidence of carriage of ex-
plosives for such use, as charged. * % *

“One feature of circumstantial evidence is brought out by the testimony
and justly pressed for consideration, as tending to prove the conspiracy in all
its phases, namely: That use of explosives for destruction of property as
described embraced exclusively ‘open-shop concerns’' and was continuous and
systematic from the commencement of such course up to the time of the above-
mentioned arrest of the McNamaras and McManigal, and then ceased through-
out the country. * * *

.’\
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* We are of opinion, therefore, that the general challenge for insufficiency of
evidence must be overruled; that support for the charge of conspiracy, to say the
least, l_).V no means rests on the testimony of McManigal; and that no error ap-
pears 1n S_Ublnisxion of his testimony for consideration by the jury. * * *

“1. Plaintiff in error, Frank M. Ryan. This plaintiff in error was president
of the association and of its executive board and was active manager and leader
of the contest and policies carried on throughout the years of the strike and de-
structive explosions in evidence. Letters written and received by him at vari-
ous stages of the contest clearly tend to prove his familiarity with and manage-
gnent of th_e long course of destroying ¢ open-shop’ structures, however guarded
in expression, He was at the headquarters of the association for supervision
of operations periodically, usually two or three days each month, uniformly
attended the meetings there of the executive board, and made frequent visits to
the field of activities. As previously stated, Ryan wrote the letter suggesting that
reports of expenditures be discontinued while ¢ our trouble is on,” and presided
at the board meeting adopting such course; and presided as well at all subse-
q_ue[}t meetings referred to-wherein all expenditures for allowance out of asso-
ciation funds ‘ were of necessity presented.’ He signed all of the checks in evi-
dence (as recited) for payments of expenditures for purchase, storage, and con-
veyance of explosives. One of Ryan’s letters (Jan. 20, 1908) to McNamara in
reference to obnoxjous work in course of erection at Clinton, Iowa, was followed
up by destruction of the bridge (Feb. 17, 1908) by explosives carried there and
applied by McManigal (under direction of plaintiff in error Hockin), and the
expense was paid through a check signed by Ryan. Letters received by Ryan
from the defendant Idward Clark, who resided at Cincinnati, one of the places
of bitter contest, and was an active manager in that field, bring home to the
former plain information of ‘needs’ for *other kinds of methods,’ which were
carried out in explosions; and muny other letters in evidence, both from and to
him, however disguised in terms, may well authorize an inference of his com-
plete understanding of and complicity in the explosions, both in plans and exe-
cution. Tdwarq Clark testifies of a meeting with Ryan in Cincinnati to exumine
the work of ‘gpen-shop’ concerns, and that Ryan called his attention to a
location where a ‘shot could be placed to advantage” McManigal testifies of
meetings and conversations with him in reference to explosions caused by the
witness, on two occasions, at least, and corroborative testimony appears for one
of these interviews, Ryan’s own testimony admits visits and conferences tend-
ing to confirm the foregoing inferences of complicity.

“The assignments on behalf of plaintiff in error Ryan are overruled, and the
judgment against him must be affirmed.”

In view of this epitomizing of testimony and the decision of this higher court,
whose integrity has not been doubted in any way, as far as I know, will you still
say that Ryan is an innocent man, falsely accused and unjustly convicted?

Mr. JoHANNsEN, I would still say that Ryan and his associates failed to get
all of the benefits the law prescribed and that the law generally gives to the
rich. I want to call your altention

Commissioner Wrinsrock (Interrupting). You say, “ To the rich ”; what do
you mean by {hal?

Mr. JoBANNSEN, The ninn that has plenty of money and friends.

Commissioner Wrinsrock., How many attorneys were employed in this case to
defend Ryan?

Mr. JomANNSkN, Ouly 1, and 14 helpers,

Commissioner Wrinstock. What was the nume of that Inwyer.

Mr. JoHANNsEN. Senator Kern, -

Commissioner Wrinsrock. Ie ig not a cheap lawyer.

Mr. JoHANNsEN. No; but he came into the case too late; he came in after the
trial had starteqd.

Commissioner WrinsTock. Do you know how much money was expended by
the structural jronworkers in defending Ryan and his associates?

1\'11‘- JOHANNSEN., I am willing to admit that, but that is not so important.
This case was taken to the Supreme Court of the United States, and the United
States Supreme Court refused to review the case. Now, on March 2, 1913, the
Uniterl States Supreme Court handed down a decision on a case of a man whose
nnme I have forgotten, but he is in the Kansas City district; I can get his
name.  Te wag charged with fraudulently using the mails. The Supreme Court
decided that fhe prinelpnl evidence used against the defendants had been
taken from hig by forcible meunns, by agents of the Government and detectives,
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something like 600 letters, and the letters used against him as evidence, and
therefore the court sustained the defendant and overruled the other court, and
ordered a new trial, and further ordered that these letters stolen from him
by the Government agents could not be used against him.

It is my deduction, and a reasonable one, had the United States Supreme
Court considered the ironworkers’ cases and made the same decision, that the
documents stolen from the ironworkers by the National Erectors’ Association
or by Burns and his detectives and by the officers of the Government—if they
could not be used against the defendants, they naturally would have been up
against it.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Would that have changed the fact of their guilt
in any way? ? 3

Mr. JoHANNSEN. It would have given them the benefit of the law.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Would it have altered the fact that those letters
had been written and the crimes committed?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. I am not the one to judge of the defendant’s guilt; that is
not up to me. I say, that, so far as the law is concerned, these men did not get
the same process, the same consideration, that other men get in other circum-
stances.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. And therefore your conclusion is that they were
innocent men?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. My conviction is that they did not get the benefit of the
law; that the law that is made by the other class—the lawyers—that the rules
of the game were ignored as against the defendant.

Commissioner WeinsTtock. I did not follow the thing as closely as you did;
but may I ask—I have an indistinct recollection of a petition presented to
President Wilson, asking him to pardon Ryan and his associates—is that so or
not? .

Mr. JoHANNSEN. You know there is also a petition presented for the pardon
of Hawkins, presented by William J. Burns, I understand.

Commissioner WrinsTock. That is not answering my question.

Mr. JHANNSEN. Yes; I think there is such a petition.

Commissioner Werstock. Can you tell us the result of that petition?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. As near as I can remember, I think four or five were par-
doned. g

Commissioner WEINsTocK. But Ryan and his associates were not pardoened?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. No.

Commissioner WEINsTOoCK. Is it reasonable to assume that the President,
whom we all respect and whom we all believe is fair-minded and high-minded
and disinterested, could have refrained from pardoning Ryan and his associ-
ates, if, as a result of the facts as represented to him, he regarded them as
innocent men?

Mr. JorannseEN, I am willing to concede the President’s honesty, and that if
he has not pardoned these men that he assumes, from his information, that they
are guilty under the law. I don't know that that is his presumption. I have
great faith in his integrity, and that he has a more sincere humanitarian point
of view than most of the employers, I can tell you that. I wish we had more
like him.

Commissioner LENNon. Mr. Johannsen, I ean not use your words, but you
practically made the statement that where the law or decisions of the courts
invades the personal rights or human rights of the individual you would dis-
obey the law or decision of the court and take the consequences?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Well, I meant in connection with injunctions.

Commissioner LENNON. Yes. Prior to the Revolutionary War, Great Britain
passed what was known as the Stamp Act. The people of the Colonies, feeling
that it was an invasion of their rights as subjects of Great Britain, refused to
obey the law, and many things happened which can be, some of them, ascer-
tained in the History of the American People, by President Wilson. Has his-
tory vindicated the actions of the colonists in refusing to obey that law?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. I should say it has.

Commissioner LENNoN. Perhaps it may be out of place to use personalities,
but prior to the war of 1861 to 1865, in the fifties my father lived in a slave
State ard operated a system of underground railway and helped slaves to
escape, contrary to the fugitive-slave law. Has history vindicated a position
of that kind?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. History and everything else has vindicated it.

Commissioner LENNoN. And it always will?

X
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Mr. JoHANNSEN. Criminals of one generation hccome the saints of the next,
socially speaking.

Commissioner LENNoN. Are you at all familiar with the starting of the strike
of the tailors in ILos Angeles, which was one of the first great strikes there—
that the members of the union were called into the shops, and they were called
in at different times—that is to say, one shop would call them at 10 o’clock
and another shop would call them at 11 o’clock and another at 2 o’clock, and so
on—and the employer notified them that if they wanted to go to work the fol-
lowing week they would have fo turn in their books as members of the tailors’
international union and sign an agreement not to become members again while
working for these firms?

Did you ever hear of it being done in that strike in Los Angeles?

Mr. JoOHANNSEN. Yes, I have heard it; but just in a general way. But the
tailors’ strike in Y.os Angeles was before I came to the city.

Commissioner LexNoN. The strike lasted 14 months?

Mr. JomANNsSEN. And they won,

Commissioner LExnoN. Of course they won.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Which was very important.

Commissioner LENNoN. In the matter of the employment of gunmen, not only
did Mr. Totten testify to the employment of gunmen, but while not so direct, it
was practically admitted by the president of one of the banks who testified in
San Francisco, whose name I have forgotten, he was a contributor, and that it
was known such things were done. This was certainly contrary to the law,
which was complained of quite often, and rightfully so in many instances.
Have these men been indicted or punished or in any way brought to task under
the provisions of the law in California or of the United States in these in-
stances? :

Mr. JomANNSEN. Noj; they are still staying in the same gambling house in San
Francisco, waiting for the next job.

Commissioner LENNoN. You have been associated with the trade-union move-
ment for quite a long while and have seen much of it in many cities. What is
your observation as to the general compliance with the laws of good citizenship
by trade-unionists in the cities where you have been as compared with men of
the same class, or women of the same class, who are not members of the union?
How do they stand as to taking care of their families, as to wife beating, as
to drunkenness, as to the general run of crimes that make up the great bulk of
the charges that come before the minor courts?

Mr. JoHannsEN., Well, I will tell you: I have been so awful busy with the
union end of it I really have not had much time to draw the comparison be-
tween union and nonunion, in addition to being a little bit prejudiced against
the nonunion. I think that the workingmen—certainly if the workingmen were
not law-abiding citizens there would be something doing. Why, sure there
would. The average business man likes the law as long as the law favors him.
As soon as he thinks the law does not favor him, then he takes the law into his
own hands, the same as he did in San Diego.

Commissioner LennoN. The fact of the matter is that with the belief in the -
minds of so many workingmen that their personal rights and constitutional
rights are invaded by the courts at times, that is the reason, if there is any vio-
lation of law on their part, it is because of that feeling of invasion?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Certainly ; decidedly.

Commissioner LENNoN. I think that is all T care to ask you.

Chairman Warsa. Mrs. Harriman would like to ask you a question,

Commissioner Harriaan. Mr, Johannsen, you speak of an inhuman point of
view amongst employers. Do you think this point of view is a willful one, or
the result of conditions? ;

Mr. JoBANNSEN. Why, of course, it is not a willful one. No one has a willful
point of view, neither our side nor their side.

Commissioner HarriMAN, Do you think it is the result of their environment
and conditions? ¥

Mr. JomannseN. Of course. Let me give you a little story, if you would not
mind, just on that line.

Shortly after the arrest of the McNamaras, Mr. and Mrs. Fremont Older,
oditor of the San Francisco Bulletin, were about to take a vacation in the
country, nnd they asked my little girl Loretta, who has since died, to go with
them ; nml she went to the country with them, and while in the country they
stopped nt nocountry hotel, and there was a rich man and his wife and their
son from Los Angeles stopping there, and they were very bitter in their an-
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tagonism and arguments, and talked to Older about the condition of things in
Los Angeles, especially about agitators, and claimed that the working people
were all satisfied and would be if it had not been for Johannsen and Tveitmoe
and McCarthy, these agitators that came down there talking to their working
people and stirring up trouble; but that they were going to put them all in
jail; that they were going to hang the McNamaras. My little girl sat and
listened to all that. So the next morning this millionaire—I have forgotten
his name—eame around to my little girl to get her to go around back of the
hotel and see where his son had shot a big deer. My little girl had been
taught by her mother not to hurt animals, and so she refused to go and said,
“Noj; I don’t want to go.” So on the way back from the hotel Mrs. Older asked
her, “ What did you think about those people, Loretta? Didn’t you think they
were awful bad when they talked about agitators and about your father?”
‘“ No; they can’t help it. They have always lived at the finest hotels and never
heard anything else.” So even she could see that, you know. It was perfectly
clear to her.

Sommissioner Harriman., Well, the statement has been made before us that
the ignorance on the part of the employer is part of the system, and that they
do not wish to be enlightened and think about these things.

Mr. JouannsenN. Well, I think we are all very much handicapped in getting
enlightenment. Of course those of us who are more fortunate in our oppor-
tunities to travel and have titne to read and to observe and to draw comparison
and to meet different kinds of people—why, just new when I met My. Drew
right here, I felt like really he was not quite so bad as I thought. I hope he
did the same as to me. I don’t know

Chairman Warsa (interrupting). I think you ought—you keep referring to
“ Drew,” which is Mr, Walter Drew, whom you speak of meeting here. Now,
you keep assuming:

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Oh, yes; I am assuming everybody knows whe he is.

Chairman WaLsH. Mr. Drew was the attorney at Indianapotis for the erec-
tors’ association?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Yes; he is chief counsel, of course. I don’t mean to reflect
on him, but :

Chairman Warsa. I didn’t mean to criticize you, but you might leave some
wrong impression, yvou understand.

‘Mr. Jomanwsen. I think that the question of communication is an all-
important question, so far as education and understanding are concerned, or
getting the point of view; and so I believe—I have felt that if the people
could get the whole story of every strike and every fight amd a real charaeter
sketch of both contending parties, no matter what they did or how they did it,
so they could try and find out what was back of them, and why their attitude,
and would they have tried to have done differently under different circum-
stances. If we could all get that, I think we would have a much better society.

Commissioner ArsHaToN. Yes; but how:

Commissioner HarrimaN. Yes; that is it.

Commissioner Aisaton. How, through what channel?

Commissioner Harriyman. Yes. Have you any plan?

Mr. JoHANNSEN., Well, I am .in hopes that the Associated Press and the
journalists will become a little more Christlike in the future; I hope so.

Commissioner HarriamMaN. Mr. Johannsen, do you believe that the workers,
when they feel that they are not getting justice at the hands of others, should
take the short cut and take the law in their own hands or depend on the ballot
for correcting their evils? ’

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Well, I have not much faith in the ballot. I am glad you
asked that question, Mrs, Harriman. Several years ago, in England, when
there was a great agitation on for to elect laboring men to the Parliament,
they elected several men, and amongst others they asked John Turner to accept
the nomination. John Turner was the general organizer of what they call
‘“ shop assistants” over there, and what we would call “retail clerks.” John
Turner is a very intelligent man, well read, well versed, and has & very excep-
tionally pleasing personality. He refused to accept any nemination. He made
this statement: That it was his judgment, from his experience, that the Gov-
ernment only reflected in its legislation the social peeds of the people in pro-
portion to the crystallized public sentiment in a given direction from time to
time ; that that being true, whatever intelligence he might have, whatever ability
he might have, he thought he could serve the interests of labor and the
interests of the people outside of Parliament better than inside of Parliament.

T

LABOR AND THE LAW. 10701

And that is exactly my opinion, and I take the same attitude toward Gompers
or any -man in such circumstances.

Commissioner HarrimMan. How are you going to improve the Government,
from your point of view, for your people whom you represent if you do not——

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Oh, the average politician is not so bad. If you can get a
public opinion strong enough, even the politicians will pass a social law. Sure
they will.

Commissioner HarrrmMan. Well, do you believe in taking the law into your
own hands if you have not much faith in the ballot?

Mr. JoHANNSEN. If you mean to ask me that question personally, you under-
stand, I don’t want to break into jail. I don’t want to help make a case
against myself. If I have to go, all right; but I would bave to be confronted
with the circumstances and the situation. It would depend on how rotten the
court might be or how unjust the administration might be in any given city
in any given time or under any given circumstances. The police commissioner,
for instance, in Stockton, came to me and asked me to take the women off the
street and not let them do picketing; that they could not do picketing. I
finally convinced him that I knew more about picketing than he did; and I am
very glad we finally agreed, because we got along much better.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Mr. Johannsen, following up the idea expressed by
Mrs. Harriman, as to whether you would take the law in your own hands, you
believe, I think, that the wageworkers of this country could more successfully,
if they agreed to do it, put into effect the shorter workday than they could do
it by legislation.

Mr. JomANNSEN. Why, certainly.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. They could more forcibly put into effect a mini-
mum wage or an average wage or a raximum wage than they could do it by
legislation.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Certainly.

Commissioner O’ConnEiLL. They could correct the employment of children or
of women or compel the proper sanitation of workshops if they would agree to
do it unanimously among themselves than they could do it by legislation.

Mr. JomaNnsgN. Certainly.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. So in that direction of affairs the wageworkers of
this country have it within their own hands to establish within 24 hours any
rule of employment that they can agree upon, if they can only agree upon it?
They don’t need to wait for legislation.

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Not quite that quick, Mr. O’Connell. Twenty-four hours is
a very short time.

Commissioner O’ConnNELL. I would like to have the opportunity of saying for
them that Monday morning a certain thing would prevail, and if they stood by
what I said it would prevail in 24 hours; as 1 understand it, it is largely a
guestion of education and understanding of the point of view.

Commissioner LENNoN. The question that is causing this unrest, of which
you were asked, is it not largely because of misrepresentation, as, for instance,
in the locality where you came from, which is Los Angeles, which has been in
the public eve for several years. It is known as the home of the “ open shop.”
This commission held a hearing in San Francisco and in Los Angeles, and we
had before our commission in Los Angeles Gen. Otis, of the Times, and the

_secretary of the Merchants & Manufacturers’ Association—the M. & M.—

and the president of it, and a number of manufacturers and Los Angeles busi-
ness men; and practically all of the witnesses who appeared before our com-
mission gave evidence to the effect that the so-called “open shop” in Los
Angeles was open only to nonunion men and that it really was not available to
union men. Gen. Otis said upon the stand—I don’t venture to quote his lan-
guage, it is so long ago, but I am sure I am right, in so far as the sentiment
was—that the new Times Building or any other Times building that might come
in the future would rot before he would ever permit a union printer to enter his
establishment, and yvet he was the advocate and his paper was the leading advo-
cate in that part of the country for the so-called “open shop.” Other manu-
facturers in the metal trades and in the building trades—I weon’t say in the
building trades, but in the metal trades and in other industries there—made
practically the same statement, that they would not permit-a union man to be
employed in their plants, and that they maintained an employment agency and
oftice in the town and kept a secretary there, and that all workmen making
applieation for employment in any of the plants must make the application at
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this one office, and that the specific question asked him was whether he was a
member of a labour organization. If he was, he could get no employiuent.

Now, it is the general impression that Los Angeles has been standing for the
so-called * open shop,” and the evidence before this commission is absolutely to
the contrary; that it is standing absolutely for a nonunion shop in the sense
that union men will not be employed. Is that not the real cause of this indus-
trial unrest and war in Los Angeles and vicinity ?

Mr, JomanxseN. Certainly; only it is -worse than what you put it.

Commissioner O’CoxXNELL. What is your impression?

Mr. JomannseN. For instance, in the millmen—I am a millman by trade,
planing mill. The agent for the Southern California Mill Owners’ Association
there, every millman knows him on the Pacific Coast. They not only insist on
dealing with the workman individually, but suppose you are a millman, and
you go to Los Angeles, whether you are a member of the union or not, the rule
applies just the same. You go to Flannagan’s office, in the Bryson Building, at
Second and Spring. Well, Mr. Flannagan examines you just the same as you
were going to jein the Army, or something else; there is a blank sheet—I sup-
pose you got that in Los Angeles. After he examines you and sends you to a
mill—to Jones, for instance, and you work for Jones—now, understand you
can not get a job if you are a union man; not if they know it; only they have to
have, once in a while, a man—can’t get anybody else and can’t help it—once in
a while they might take a union man. But you work for Jones, and you have
a neighbor who is working at another plant, and he says to you, * You could
get a job over here, and the other fellow wants a ‘sticker,” and you can get
50 cents more.” So, then, I quit with Jones and go to work for the other man,
and Jones, if he wants me back, all he has to do is to telephone Flannagan that
‘“ Johannsen has quit me, and now he is working for Squire, and I want him
back.” I have got to go back or else leave town. That is as sure as I am sitting

, here on this chair.

Commissioner O'ConxEern. The fact is that the employment agent of the
manufacturers of Los Angeles—the one individual—has the power of saying
to any human being in Los Angeles you can work in Los Angeles or you can not
work in Los Angeles.

Mr. JomannyseEN. Correct.

Commissioner O’ConrNELL. And he can drive him and his family away and
break up his home and compel him to leave Los Angeles?

Mr. JouannsEN. Correct.

Commissioner O’'CoxnELL. Is that not one of the underlying causes of indus-
trial unrest?

Mr. JormannseEN. Certainly.

Jommissioner O'CoxnnNELL. And that makes for hatred among men?

Mr. JomaxnseEN. Certainly.

Commissioner O’CoxNeLL. That that power should.be placed in the hands
of one individual or any number of individuals, that a man whose life may
have been spent in Los Angeles, his life’s little savings, whatever they may be,
whatever they may have been invested in, in the home or a little piece of land,
and he may have raised his children there, and that he must be compelled to
sacrifice all of that thing to what they are pleased to call a so-called “ open-
shop ” condition in Los Angeles, which, before this commission, was proven to
be absolutely nonemployment of union men in favor of nonunion men. If that,
then, is the evidence of what is meant by the open shop by the employers of
this country, that it means the absolute elimination of the union man from
their employment, then the so-called right of men to seek employment, or of a
man to give employment, or of the equity between union and nonunion men, and
the right of citizenship for the employees of our- country, is not truly repre-
sented by these associations, nor is not being carried out by them?

Mr. JoEANNSEN. Of course not. I don’t think anybody believes that very
seriously.

Chairman WarLsg. That is all, Mr. Johannsen, unless there is some further
statement you wish to make.

Mr. JogannseEN. I would like to make an explanation in regard to a certain
matter to indicate how diflicult it is for labor to obtain anything in the way of
legislation from the Federal Government, especially, in many States. I have
in mind a specific case——

Commissioner (’CoNNELL (interrupting). If you will permit me, I wish to

put this in the record before you speak of the Federal Government. I meant
to suy this when I first started to question you. Several years ago myself and
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several others—and this statement can be verified by others who are living—
called upon the late Senator Hanna, who was then in the United States Senate,
in connection with the Federal eight-hour legislation, at which time one of the
witnesses who just preceded you, Mr, Davenport, was also interested in the
prevention of the passage of that legislation. We met Senator Hanna in the
Senate Chamber, and discussed with him the advisability of assisting us in
securing the passage of that legislation. Senator Hanna made this remarkable
statement to us. He said, ‘ Gentlemen, if you want the eight-hour day, why
don’t you go out and take it.” That is the thought I want to bring to you
in the question of labor and the law, and securing an eight-hour day and other
things industrially.

Mr. JoranxseN. I think that was good advice, Mr. O'Connell. The seamen’s
bill recently passed both Houses and was signed by the President. The leading
man who went through the high seas, politically and socially, as an advocate
of the passage of that bill, was Andrew Furuseth, whom I knew personally for
many years. I believe a typical incident of his character may be shown, and X
would like to tell a little story briefly.

Some time ago Mr. Furuseth was cited for violating an injunction, in contempt
of court, in San Trancisco; and from newspaper reports there appeared to be
a -possibility of him beingr sent to jail. The editor of the San Francisco
Bulletin, Mr. Older, called him into his office, and he sat down, and Older said to
him, “Andy, it looks as though they were going to put you in jail.”- Furuseth
looked over at him and said, “I don’t know and I don’t care; they can not put
me in a smaller place than I have always lived in. They can not give me
simpler food than I have always been acc’ustomed to. They can’t make me any
more lonely than I have always been.”

I was at a loss to understand how a man with such a character, and that is
very characteristic of him, whose sincerity and devotion to his people can not
be questioned, whose termendous unselfishness and his simplicity in life, how
such a man had to sit on the doorsteps of Uncle Sam’s palace 21 years, not-
withstanding the fact that he had all the moral influence of all of the unions
from coast to coast unanimously. He had to wait 21 years for what? To get
the Government to agree, by the passage of this bill, to take the shackles off
of the secamen, so that they would be afforded an opportunity to work out
their own salvation; not to give them anything, but to allow them the same
opportunity other workingmen had, so that they could quit individually with-
out going to jail. That is all this means. And when labor has to wait, notwith-
standing it has a champion of this character, and notwithstanding the fact that
it is a unit from coast to coast—when, as I say, it has to wait 21 years, then
I think it is all wrong.

Commissioner LENxo~x. And that only gives them a right to quit in a safe
port? )

Mr. JOHANNSEN. Yes.

Commissioner WEINsTock. I want to ask a question in connection with the
seamen’s bill. I want to say frankly that I telegraphed President Wilson,
asking him to sign that bill.

Mr. JooanNNSEN. Good, fine; I like you much better, Mr. Weinstock.

Commissioner WerinstTock. But I want to say to you, also, that since I did
that I have great doubt as to whether I did the wise thing,

Mr. JoHEANNSEN. That shows there is a chance for mental improvement.

Commissioner WEeINsTOCK. And I want enlightenment from you. The question

"has- occurred to me since, whether the passage of that bill will not absolutely

work to the advantage of the oriental sailors and the displacement of the
white sailors, at least on the Pacific -coast, and give the oriental sailors a
monopoly of that industry.

Mr. JomAaNNSEN. I have such a supreme confidence in the ability and the
knowledge and the wisdom and the integrity of Andrew Furuseth when he says
that it will not that I am satisfied it won’t. J

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You are simply banking on his judgment?

Mr. JOHANNSEN. -Certainly. .

Commissioner WeInsTock. I am frank to confess that I also banked largely
on that. -

Mr. JoBANNSEN. And his courage; I have the greatest respect for his courage.

Commissioner O'ConneLL. Can you give us an idea of who has been working
to prevent the passage of this legislation to break the shackles of the sailors
for the last 21 years?
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Mr. JomanNsEN. The great Shipping Trust and all of the other interests com-
monly considered antagonistic to organized labor. {

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. A general lobby of all interests, and that lobby
has been before Congress for 21 years interesting themselves in the prevention
of the passage of this legislation?

Mr, JoHANNSEN. Certainly.

Commissioner AisHTON. We have heard a good deal about the * verdict of
history,” and it would be idle for any of us to express any definite opinion
as to the wisdom of that bill; you have your viewpoint, and some of us have
ours. I agree with Mr. Weinstock, and I think history will indicate that the
legislation possibly has not been for the best interests of the country as a
whole. You agree, do you not, that history—that the verdict of history—is
really the true verdict? :

Mr. JoHANNSEN. Well, in a large sense.

Commissioner ArsgToN, That is all, thank you.

Chairman WaLsa. That is all, thank you, Mr. Johannsen; you will be
excused.



